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DIRECTORS' REPORT
1. Introduction

The Directors are pleased to submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, which disclose the state of affairs of
Fast African Development Bank ("EADB” or "the Bank”}.

Although the year was marked by the unfortunate global health and economic crisis
triggered by the Novel Corona Virus (COVID-18) pandemic, the Bank managed fo
maintain its good performance and set stage for better performance in 2021 as the
global economy is expected to steadily recover.

2. Incoarporation

The Bank was created under the Traaty for the East African Co-operation of 1967,
which was subseguently amended and re-enacted as the Treaty and Charter of the
£ast African Development Bank {"The Bank’'s Charter”) in 1280.

3. Mission and Vision

The Bank’s Vision is to be a partner of choice in promaoting sustainable social-economic
development.

The Bank’s Mission is to promote sustainable social economic development in East
Africa by providing development finance, advisory and support services.

4. Principal activity

The principal activity of the Bank is devefopment finance lending under the Bank’s
Charter. The Bank’s principal activity is achievad through following:

(a) Provision of financial assistance through loans to promote the development of
Member Stales;

(b) Provision of consutting, promotion, agency and other similar services for the
region;

{c) Promotion of economic development in the Member States, in such fields as
industry, tourism, agriculiure, felecommunications and other fields of development;

(d) Joint financing operations and technical assistance to national development
agencies of the Member States and use of such agencies as channels for
financing specific projects; and

(e} Co-operation with cther institutions and crganizations, public or privats, national or
international, which are interested in the development of the Member States.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT {continued)
5. Business Objectives and Strategies

The main objective of the Bank is to support economic development in Member States
through medium ang long-term lending of financially viable and socially sustainable
projects.

The Bank's strategy is anchared on Member States’ national devalopment strategies as
well as the East African Community’s Visien 2050. The year 2020 marked conclusion of
the Bank's 2016-2020 stratagic plan which, among other things, focused on five key
areas in the region namely:

. food security covering agriculiure, agribusiness and forestation;

- social development covering education, health and housing;

. itréf_rl*_astructure development covering energy, water, transport, manufacturing and

. regional integration covering trade and cross border projects; and

. climate change covering environmental protection, biodiversity and green
investments.

Implementation of the strategy was monitored through quarterly and annual reports to
the Board of Directors.

The strategic plan covering year 2021-2025 has been prepared and will be approved
during the course of the year as the bank assess the Covid-18 situation in the region.

6. Governance

The Bank is committed to principles of goad governance contained in the Charter and
endeavours to make continuous improvements in line with the best practices to remain
refevant and effective.

As such, govemance plays a key role in the management of the affairs of the Bank and
in the overall execution of its mandate it has various structures and measures in place
to promote and safeguard good governance.

The key elements of the governance structure comprise: the Governing Council which
is the supreme organ of the Bank; the Board of Directors which reports to the
Governing Councit, and the Advisory Panel to the Board. Further information about
each of these organs of the Bank is provided below:
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)
a) Governing Council

The Governing Council is compriged of Ministers responsible for Finance in Member
States and meets reqularly to receive and consider reports from the Board of
Directars. The following Governing Council Members served during the year:

_ . |Detalls

| Name
1 Hon. Mialia Kasaija (Chairman) - Minister of Finance, Planning and
" | Economic Development, Republic of

b oAMganda
:2 | Hon. Dr. Philip Mpango! | Minister of Finance and Planning, United
__(Upto30March202t) | Republicof Tanzania_ -

i3 | Hon. Dr. Mwiguilu Nchemba * Minister of Finance and Planning, United |

: (From 31 Margh 2021} - Republic of Tanzania ) B

4 : Hon. Amb. Ukur Yatani | Cabinet Secretary, The National Treasury,

. _|RepublicofKenya ’

| Minister of Finance and Economic
.._i Planning, Republic of Rwanda

"8’ | Dr. Uzziel Ndagijimana

b} Board of Directors and sub-commitiees

The Board of Directors is vested with all powers in the Bank and meets at least on
guarterly basis to receive and consider reports from Management. The Board of
Directors is comprised of Permanent Secretaries of the Ministries responsible for
Finance in Member States, private sector representatives from Member Stales and
the Director General. Non-Sovereign shareholders {class B shareholders) are
represented to the Board by the African Development Bank.

The Board has two committees namely the Board Human Resources Committee
which is responsible for all staffing and refated issues in the Bank and the Board
Audit Committee which is responsible for all internal control issues.

The Board of Directors met three times during the year to deliberate on various
issues including the Bank’s financial performance, risk management reports and
approval of projects.

1 On 30" Mareh 2021 Hon. Dr. Philip Mpango was confirmed by the Parliament as Vice President of the United
Republic of Tanzanla following recommendation by the Frasident. He was replaced by Hon, Dr. Mwlgalu Nohemba
wha was appointed Ministar of Finanee and Planning with effact from 31° March 2021.

4
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DIRECTORS® REPORT (continued)

6. Governance (continued)

b) Board of Directors and sub-committees {continued)

The Board Audit Committee aiso met thrice during the year and deliberated on
Internal and external Audit reports while the Human Resources Committee met
twice to deliberate various personnel related issues.

The Board members who served during the year and to the date of this report were:

Name

{Chalrman}

2 B Julius Muia

4 Mr James Doto
Up to 3 April 2021

‘5 Emmanuel Tutuba

'3 MrCaleb Rwamuganza
Up to 315 December 2019

From 4" April 2021

¥ Dr Aba Mukhtar

? Mr Francis N. Karuiru

11 Ms Vivienne Yeda

c) Advisory Panel

"8 Mirs Khadija . Simba
‘g MrMbundu Faustin

10 Mr James Tumusime

1 MrKeith Muhakanizi

i shareholders Representative

. Kenya

 Bank____

Permanent Secretary and Secretary to the
Treasury, Ministry of Finance, Planning and
Economic Development, Republic of Uganda
Principal Secretary, the National Treasury,
Republic of Kenya

Permanant Secretary, Sacretary to the Treasury,
. Ministry of Finance and Economic Planning,
_.: Republic of Rwanda

. Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Finance and

: : Planning, United Republic of Tanzania

: Pernﬁéﬁéﬁﬁéﬁéﬁéﬁ;"Mimstry of Finance and

Piannmg United Republic of Tanzania

| African Development Bank - Class B

: Private Sector Representative, Republlc of
Private Sector_Repf:resentatwe United F{epubilc ;
of Tanzania

Private Sector Representative, Republic of

: Rwanda

Private Sector Representative, Republic of

i Uganda

i Director General, East African Development

The Advisory Panal is comprised of eminent personalities with extensive experience
in international and development financing and they advise the Bank on best
practices and effective strategies to pursue. The current members of the Advisory

FPanet are;
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DIRECTORS' REPORT {continued)
¢) Advisory council {continued)

Members of the Advisory Panel

| TName iDetalls T

| Mr Mahesh K. Kotecha | Former Managing Director of Capital Markets

5 | Assurance Corporation, New York and Capital Markata

| Assurance Corporation, Asia and former Managing

i ... iDirector of Mbia Insurance Gorporation

: 2 1 Mr Toyoo Gyohten | President, Institute for International Monetary Affairs,

P | Japan and Senior Adviser, Bank of Tokyo, Mitsubishi

__ibimited ST
Former Deputy Director General, Swedish

A L Internatiunm Development Agency ("SIDA™) |

: 4 | Mr Jannik Lindbaek " Former Executive Vice president and CEO of the

o | Internationat Finance Gorporation (‘IFC")

—

"3 | Mr Lars Ekengren

7. Capital and Shareholding

The Bank's authorised share capital is USD 2,160,000,000 comprised of 160,000
shares with a par value of LSD 13,500 each.

The authorised shares are classified into Class A shares {144,000) which are available
for subscription fo only member states and in equal proportion and Class B (16,000}
which are availabte for subscription fo members other than Member States.

During the year tha Bank received additional capital from Tanzania comprised of 457
Class A shares valued at USD 6,169,500 taking the total paid up share capital of the
Bank to LJSD 195,903,000 comprised of 12,737 Class A shares valued at USD
171,848,500 and 1,781 class B shares valued at USD 24,043,500 {2019: paid up share
capital of USD 189,823,500 comprised of 12,280 Class A shares vaiued at LIED
165,780,000 and 1,781 class B shares valued at USD 24,043,500.

The Bank's Class A and Class B sharehoiders as at 31 December 2020 and 2018,
respectively, were as follows.

:Namo T T w208
7T | Ghares | Value % _iShares | Vale | %
Classﬁn —_ . |usDaqog: S ‘uspbooo | |
qua_rr]ment of Kenya | 3800) 51300 26_1?% _ 11@@____ 51,300 | 27.03% |
| Government of United aarm= 51.300 | 26.17% | 3,343 451307  23.77% |
| Repubfic of Tanzania | P T B
 Government of Uganda - GBUD _ 51,3001 26.47% | 38001 51,3007  27.08%:
| Government of Rwanda P, 33? 18,050 | 9.21% ! 1,337 18,050 . 951%
| Total Class A 112,737 171,950 ; 87.72% . 12,280 | 165,780 | 87.33% |
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)

7. Capital and Shareholding (continuecd)

CiassB
: African Pevelopment Bank

| FMO — Netheriands Development |

| Finance Company

| BEG - Deutsche Investitions- und
| Entwicklungsgesellschaft

| Yugoslavia Congortium

| SBIC - Africa Holdings
: NCBA Bank Kenya Ltd (Previously
. Commercial Bank of Africa)
: Nordea Bank Sweden

Standard Chartered Bank London |

_1UsD'000;

6 16,740 _ 8.54%;
5062 2.58%

. USD'600,

2016740 880%
375! 5,062
| :

T e . s
Shares! Value]  %|Shares]  Value] %

| Barclays Bank Plc., l.ondon
! Total Class B

8. Financial Performance

TTi00;1,380; 0.69% 100, 1,360;  0.71%
TEE B7el 0AS% 28 378 020%
_________ 24 324 _047AL 24 324 017
5 68 0.03%: 5: 68 0.04%
"""""" 5 68 ood% 6 68 0.04%)
20 .21 00M%: 2! 270 _0.01%:

2 27 001%;. 2 27 0.01%
1,781 24,044 1227% 1,781 24,044 1267%

| 14,5181 195,904]  100%! 14,061 189,824 100%

Despite challenges emanating from the COVID-19 pandemic and impact of measures
taken to contain it, the Bank recorded a profit for the year of USD 6,37 million, which
was 27% lower than the amount recordad in 2018 mainly due to the adverse effects of
COVID-19 as detailed in section 9 below.

The financial results of the Bank are summarised bealow.
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8. Financial Performance

Performance highlights

2020 2019 Change Change
Performance measure usp'eoo UsD'0oe  USD'000

Net operating income after impairment . 14,805 0 16,231 - (1,836) - (9.5%)

Operating expenses . - * . - 18,330 7,500 (¢ 830 . 41.1%
Profitfortheyear = .0~ @ 6,365 . 8731 ' {2366) . (27.1%}
Total assets 375,863 374,865 BG8 0.2%
Met loans and advances 129,045 148,838 (19,583} (13.2%)
Equity 278,949 266,417 12,532 4.7%
Return on Assets 1.69% 2.33% (0.64%) (27.6%)
Return on Equity 2.28% 3.28% (1%) (30.4%}

Once again, the credit rating agencies {the Moody's and Global Credit Rating)
confirmed the Bank’s investment grade rating with stable outlock signifying continued
stability and bright prospects,

The Moody's rating report was released in October 2020 and re-affirmed the Bank's
Baa3 rating with stable ocutlook sighting, among other things, its robust capital buffers
and prudent Aquidity levels. Supporting the stable outlook, the rating report states as
follows: ‘the stable ouflook reflects our expeciation that the bank's robust capfial
adequacy and prudent liquidity management are likely to remain broadly unchanged
over the medium term as the institution pursues a modest growth path commensurate
with its risk management capabilities and shareholder support capacily’.

Another rating report by the Global Credit Rating was released in November 2020 and
maintained the Bank’s [ong-term issuer and short-term credit ratings of BBB- and A3
respectively with stable outlook. Providing rationale, the report states that the rating
‘batances its geographical risk concentrations, preferred creditor treatment {PCT'),
fairly strong mandate, very sirong capitalisation, modest risk position, adequate funding
and strong Fquidity’.

g, COVID-19 impact and the Bank’s response
2020 was marked by the unfortunate experience of an unprecedented combined health
and economic crisis triggered by the novel corona virus {COVID-19) which ravaged the

world impacting economic aclivities and sending global financial markets tumbling.

There has been widespread adverse impact of the pandemic spanning economic,
political as well as social spheres which unfortunately, included loss of many lives.
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9. COVID-19 impact and Bank’s response (continued)

In response to the pandemic, Governments took major bold steps to contain the spread
of the disease as well as easing hardship to citizens. The measures taken to curb
spread of the virus ranged from tota! lockdowns to controlled movements. On the other
hand, measures taken to ease the hardship inciuded direct financial support to
impacted families, reductions in central bank interest rates, relaxation of rules on
restructuring of toans, a range of tax reliefs and the promotion of mobile money and
internet banking usage through reduction of fees.

The Bank was impacted directly by this pandemic through its financed projects, its own
operations and through the impact of the pandemic on Bank staff some of whom were
infected but fortunately have since made fult recoveries,

In response to the pandemic, the Bank invoked its contingency plan and enhanced it to
cater for the unigue challenges brought by the pandemic which were not envisaged at
the time of developing the contingency plan. The Bank fully adhered to measures taken
ny the authorities where it operates including strictly observing standard operating
procedures (SOPs) in its operations.

The Bank's technology facilitated remote working and ensured that service delivery was
not significantly impacted. Some support staff who could not work remotely were given
paid leave days until the situation allowed to resume work with strict observation of the
SOPs.

Perhaps the most important decision made was to remain committed to supporting our
clients through this ordeal. The Bank maintained close relationships with customers to
understand their challenges and provide needed support which included moratorium in
loan repayment where underlying projects were negatively impacted.

As a result, the Bank managed to reschedule foans amounting to USD 40.20 million,
which was 28.2% of the average loan portfolio during the year.

Fortunately, most of the customers have done very well following the flexibility provided
and enabled them to keep liquidity that was required to support business which could
have otherwise been used to repay the Bank's loans. Performance of the underlying
loans has remained goed.

The Bank continues committed to provide support to its existing customars in addition
ta approving new financing to sectors that will support recovery of the economy and
provide employment and other positive economic impact.




East African Development Bank
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

DIRECTORS’ REPORT {continued)
9) COVID-19 impact and Bank’s response {continued)

The global and regional economic impact of the pandemic contributed to loss on foreign
exchange and revaluation of investment properties amounting to USD 0.85 million, a
significant increase compared to loss of USD 0.05 million in 2019. The foreign
exchange loss resulfed from transtation of other currencies to the US Doltars {(which is
the Bank’s reporting currency) while loss on revaluation of investment properties
resuited from real estate market fall in the entire region.

Since these are not real losses it is expected that the market wili correct during
recovery and the Bank will recoup some of these losses although the same has already
been fully covered in 2020 report and did not significantly impact the capital adequacy.

In addition, the Bank’s approval of new loans and disbursements slowed down due to
uncertainties brought by the pandemic while loan impairment charge increased several
times to USD 0.59 million (0.4% of the gross loan portfolio} compared to only USD 0.16
million {0.1% of the gross loans portfolio} in 2019 in view of increased inherent risk.

Although there is hope for slow but steady global economic recovery, partly supparied
by the start of vaccination programs in some countries, the Bank will continue to
monitor the COVID-18 situation and its impact carefully and take additional measures
where necessary to safeguard its interests and those of its stakeholders.

10. Cash flow and Liguidity Management

Liguidity management is a critical aspect in any development bank operations and as
such the Barnk places significant importance on this aspect. Detailed liquidity risk
management report is contained on note 36(c} of the financial statements.

During the year, the Bank maintained adequate liguidity and the actual liquidity ratio af
the end of 2020 was 5.67 times compared to 3.99 times in 2019 and remained above
the target ratic of 1.33 times.

Overall, the Bank's cash and cash equivalents reduced by USD 16 million (2019
reduction of USD 20 million}. Cash generated from operating activities of USD 24
million together with the capital injection from the Government of Tanzania of USD &
million and proceeds from loans of USD 4 million were offset by investments in
placements of USD 36 million and debt repayments of USD 14 million.

10
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11. Market overview

The operating environment was characterised by unprecedented challenges mainly as
a result of the COVID-18 pandemic. In addition to the pandemic, there were other
challenges that originated from the previous year although most of them were
overshadowed by the pandemic.

Politically, 2020 was a busy period for the regionas both Tanzania and Burundi held
their etections during the year while Uganda continued with its campaigns and elections
were held in January 2021. Despite the uncertainties, and unforiunate loss of some
innocent lives during the elections, the elections did not significantly disrupt the
economic activities and the operations of the Bank, neither are the election outcomes
expected to have major impact on future operations of the Bank.

The international Monetary Fund {IMF) World Economic Outlook update issued in
January 2021 states that 'amid exceplional unceriainty, the global economy is projected
fo grow 5.5 percent in 2021 and 4.2 percent in 2022

On the other hand the World Bank in its press release dated 5 January 2021 projected
the global economy fo expand 4% in 2021, assuming an initial COVID-18 vaccine
rollout becomes widespread throughout the year.

Although thers is a consensus that there will be recovery in 2021, there is no similar
consensus on the path expected on the recovery although it is expected to be slow and
delicate requiring adjustments by policy makers if it is to be sustained. Both IMF and
World Bank projections mentioned policy adjustments as an important aspect to realize
the projected growth.

With continuation of the political leaderships in Tanzania and Uganda, there are no
major economic policy changes expected. On the other hand, despite the ravage of the
global health and economic crisis, the fundamentals in the Member States’ economies
are still relatively strang providing a good starting point.

The Bank is expecting to continue exercising caution on its operations during the year,
staying ready to make needed adjustments to protect its interests and those of the
stakeholders.

12. Future Plans

Usefulness of the development banks has almaost always been felt the most during
racovery from crises as demand for financing to support needed growth soars. The
Bank remains committed to its core mandate of promaoting development in member
states. Despite the challenges expecied in the Member States’ economies’, the Bank
will play important role during growth by providing technical advice as well as needed
fimancing.

11
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12. Future Plans {continued)

The Bank prepared its 2021-2025 strategic plan, cognisant of the ever-increasing need
far its services in the region especially during the recovery period. The Bank will
therefore be ‘cautiously aggressive’ in growing its activities in the region while at the
same time continuing fo mohitize appropriately priced credit facilities in order to fund
the expected growth.

The Bank will continue to reach out o the new members who have joined the East
African Community with the view of finafizing process for them to join the Bank hence
broadening its operating environment.

At the same time, the Bank will continue to improve is risk management practices,
drawing from the experience gained during the global health and economic crisis, [0
ensure that there is balance between pursuit of growth and quality of its assets.

Collaboration during this growth phase is an important aspect and therefore
engagemant with key stakeholders will be enhanced to ensure stronger, more effective
and efficient alliances are bulilt in order to fulfil the mandate.

13. Risk and Risk Management

The Bank has a robust risk management program documented in its Enterprise-wide
risk management policy.

The Bank adopts three pillars of risk management philosophy where business units act
as the first line of defance with risk champions in each risk-taking depariment taking
leading roles. Risk and Compliance function act as the second line of defence and co-
ordinate organization-wide risk management with periodic risk management repotts to
the Board. The Bank’s Internal Audit function independently assess effectiveness of the
Bank’s risk management and recommend improvements. Detailed financial risk
management disciosures are provided in Note 36 of the financial statements.

14. Solvency

The Board of Directors confirm that the financial statements have been prepared based
on International Financial Repotting Standards and that they have been prepared on a

going concern basis. The Board is confident that the Bank has all necessary resources
to continue operating on this basis for a foreseeabls future.

12
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15. Resources

The Bank continues fo take pride in its committed and motivated staff team, its modern,
resilient and agile technology as well as committed stakeholders including
shargholders, fund providers and supportive clients.

The Bank's motivated and highly skilled human capital remain the bedrock of its
performance and more efforts will be deployed to ensure that staff are well equipped to
continue delivering on the mandate.

As witnessed during the height of the giobal health and economic erisis, the Bank’s
modern technology operating platform will continue to facilitate operations across the
regicn while improvements and enhancements will continue to be made to ensure
excellence and safety.

The commitment of the shareholders was reinforced during the year through receipt of
additional capital from Tanzania. The additional capital automatically increased callable
capital commitments to USD 873.75 million up from USD 842.9 million last year. The
Bank is in turn committed to work tirelessly to deliver aspirations of the shareholders.

Fund providers remained committed to the Bank even during the turmail of the globali
health and economic crisis and once again proving their importance to the growth and
success of the Bank. More will be done to ensure that operations are sustainably
profitable, and quality of assets improve, thereby guaranteeing repayment of their
funds.

16. Employee Welfare

As alluded to in the previous section, employaes are the most important resource of the
Bank, henceforth deliberate efforts are made to maintain harmonious relationship in
order to improve performance.

The Bank enstres that employees are well remunerated based on their actual
performance and results achieved. The Bank operates a defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme to which employees contribute 10% of their basic salary and the Bank
contributes 10%, 12.5% or 15% of the employee’s basic salary depending on the length
of service. The schems is independently managed by a professional fund manager who
provides periadic reports to a committee nominated by staff.

The Bank also makes contribution o the statutory pension schemes for its support staff
in Kenya and Uganda.

The Bank provides medicat insurance cover for employees, their spouses and up fo
four qualifying dependants through a reputable medical insurance provider. Continuous
monitoring on the services offered by the insurance cover is undertaken to guarantee
guality service is provided to staff.

13
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16. Employee Welfare

in order to improve performance, the Bank provides continuous training to staff in
various, need driven areas. The Bank will continue to innovate and improve staff
welfare.

The Bank is an equal empioyer and staff are offered equal opportunities based on their
merits and not based on gender, disability or any similar attributes in their jurisdictions/
courntries of residence.

17. Related Party Transactions

The Bank's related patty transactions are concluded at arm’s length basis. Details of
refated party transactions at the end of the year are shown on Note 40,

18. Social and Environmental controls

The Bank remains committed to sustainable development and live by that commitment
ensuring that all its projects do not negatively affect the people aimed to benefit or their
environmeant.

The Bank's Environmental and Social policy provides guidance on day-to-day
operations to ensure that safeguards are provided in all financed projects. Periodic
reports are provided as part of monitoring process to assess the potential social or
environmental impact.

The Bank does not finance any project with potential impact to environment before
environmental impact assessment report approved by competent authorities in Member
States is submitted showing their support for the project.

19. Stakeholders

Cordial relationship was maintained with all key stakeholders including shareholders,
fund providers, customers, employees, service providers and the public at large. The
Bartk values coniribution and support of all its stakeholders and implement strategies to
assess the stakeholder's expectations and how they will be met. The Bank will continue
to actively engage with its stakeholders with the view to improve the value creation
process.

20. Dividends

The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividends for the year 2020 {2019:
Nii). This is in line with shareholders’ strategy to build up the capital of the Bank.

14
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21. Evenis after reporting date

There are no other events after the reporting period.
22. Auditor

The Bank’s 2021 auditor shall be appointed by the Governing Council in accordance
with Article 26 {d)} of the Bank's Charter.

By order of the Board

hairman — Board of Directors Direntcrl{f

¥
Date Date

15
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STATEMENT OF IRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Treaty and Charter of the East African Development Bank (“the Bank’s Charter”}
requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give
a true and fair view of the financial pasition of the Bank at the end of the financial year
and its financial performance for the year then ended. The Directors are responsible for
ensuring that the Bank keeps proper accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the transactions of the Bank; disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Bank; and that enables them to prepare financial statements of
the Bank that comply with international Financial Reporting Standards and the
requirements of the Bank’s Charter. They are also responsibie for safeguarding the
assets of the Bank and for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors accept responsibility for the preparation and presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Repotting Standards
and in the manner required by the Bank's Charter. They also accept responsibility for:

(i)  Designhing, implementing and maintaining internal control as they determine
necessary to enable the preparation of financial staiements that are free from
material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error;

(i) Selecting suitable accounting palicies and then applying them consisiently; and

(i} Making judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

The Directors acknowledge that the independent audit of the financial statements does
not relieve them of their responsibility.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have assessed the Bank’s ability to
continue as a going concern. in performing this assessment, the Directors have
considered the impact of COVID-19 on the East African market and wider international
economy as discussad on the Direciors report. The Directors hereby report that nothing
has come to their attention to indicate that the Bank will not remain a going concern for
at least twelve months from the date of this statement.

Approval of the financial statements

The financial statgments \.ﬁ.femZ approved and authorised for issue by the Bﬁd of.
Directors on ?ﬁhﬁl}z)ﬂ ... 2021 and the Governing Council on .. 7E. .nditdad
2021 apd were signed on their behalf by:
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR TO THE MEMBERS OF
£AST AFRICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK

Qur opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of East African Development Bank (“the Bank”) as at 31 December 2020, and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
international Financial Reporting Standards.

What we have audifed

The financial statements of East African Development Bank set out on pages 23 fo 102
comprise:

the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020,

the staterment of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant
accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
{“ISAs™). Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auiditor's responsibifities for the audit of the financial stalements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate o
provide a basis for cur opinion.

independence

We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by
the International Ethics Standards 8oard for Accountants {"the IESBA Code") together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of financial statements in
Uganda, and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilifies in accordance with these
reguirements and the IESBA Code.

Pricewaterouse opers Cortified Public Accountants, Convmumicedtons House, 1 Colutlle Street, P. O, Box 882,
Kampala gando, Regisiration Number 113042
T: +256 (4714) 236018, +256 (312} 554400, I +236 f414) 290155, [ ug_general @ puic.omm, W pruc.corm/ug

Parnnrs; 0 daualuelgya O Beemba F Kaadegaye P Metamha U Mo

Pricewalethauset oppems GRA s regulated by o Inslilule of Caiillled Fubllc Arrauntanls of Uigarea (CRALL, IGPALL Mz AFTI01



pwe

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR TO THE MEMBERS OF
EAST AFRICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK {continued)

Key aldif matter

A key audit matier is one that, in our professional judgment, was of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. This matter was
addressed in the context of our audit of the Bank's financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion therecn, and we do not provide a separate opinion on this

matter.

impairment of loans and advances

As disclosad in Note 15 of the
financial statements, the Directors
have estimated provisions for
expectad credit josses on loans and
advances of USD 4.0 million at 31
December 2020 (2019: USD 3.4
million).

We considered this a key audit matter
due to significant judgment exercised
by the Directors in estimating
expected credit losses over the
remaining lifetime of loans and
advances whose credit risk increased
significantly since origination and
loans in default; and, for the next 12
months for all ather loans and
advances as follows:

+ defining both defaultand
significant increase in credit nisk,
based on guantitative and
qualitative factors taking into
consideration the effects of
Corona Virus 2019 {COVID — 19)
pandemic; and

- in estimating probabilities of
default {"PD™), loss given default
E"LGD"; and exposure at default

“"EAD") over the relevant period
being either 12 months or
remaining lifetime of the relavant

. loans and advances.

Qur audit procedures are summarised as
follows:

We evaluated the appropriateness of the
methodology applied by management in
the calculation of expected credit losses
for consistency with IFRS 8;

We evaluated management controls over
the staging of loans and advances
between default (Stage 3), significant
increase in credit risk (Stage 2) and
others (Stage 1)} and tested, on a sample
hasis, the s a{qin of loans and advances
by reference to changes during the year
in the internal credit risk grading applied
for & sample of the Bank’s borrowers;

We recomputed the reasonableness of

PDs used by management as well as the
accuracy of the underlying historical data
applied by management in deriving PDs;

We evaluated the suitability of forward
looking data used in estimating PDs
based on its correlation to the Bank's
default history, together with the accuracy
of its application in the PD estimation
process. We also checked the .
reasonableness of the evidence available
to support overtays applied in response {o
uncertainty arising from the adverse
effects of the COVID-19;
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR TO THE MEMBERS OF
EAST AFRICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK {continued)

Key audit matter (confinuead]}

We tested, on a sampie basis, the
reasonablenass of the present values of
expected future cashflows of loans and
advances used by management in the
calculation of LGD taking into account
realizable vatues of collateral held by the
Bank, costs to sell and the time value of
I'I'IDI_'LE;}‘ over the expected realization
period;

We recomputed, on a sample basis,
expected credit losses for loans and
advances and assessed the overall
reasonableness of provisions for loans
and advances made by the Bank as at
31 December 2020; and

We evaluated the overall adequacy of
relevant IFRS disclosures in the financial

Other Infarmation

The Directors are responsibie for the other informatfion. The other information
gomprises the information included in the annuat report but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our
audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, hased on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a materia

misstatemnent of this other information, we are reguired to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR TO THE MEMBERS OF
EAST AFRICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK {continued)

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

The Directors are rasponsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a
triee and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and
in the manner required by the Treaty and Charter of the East African Development
Bank (“the Bank’s Charter”), and for such internal control as the Diractors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financiat statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the
ability of the Bank to continue as a going concern, disciosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting uniess the
Directors either intend 1o liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or have no
realistic altermative but to do so.

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process.

Auditor's responsibifities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reascnable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expectad to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professionat skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ [dentify and assess the risks of material misstaterment of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedurss responsive fo those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for cne
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controal.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR TO THE MEMBERS OF
EAST AFRICAN PEVELOPMENT BANK (continued}

Auditor's responsibitifies for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control refevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal
control.

Evatuate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our opinion. Cur conclusions are based
an the audit evidence obtained up {o the date of cur auditor's repart. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial staternents
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

YWe communicate with the Directors regarding, amonyg other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

21



pwe

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR TO THE MEMBERS OF
EAST AFRICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK {continued)

Auditor’s responsibifities for the audit of the financial statements {continiied)

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determing those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matiers. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure ahout the
matter or when, ih extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report becatse the adverse consequences of doing 50
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report
s CPA Uthman Mayanja — PO181.

- \"; Clemve! l:‘..---"“'L l'-._,.:-"i.i: .-.f'_:..(::'.' .--H-.'(_-%-,t:;LlM:':{I_'-T -:l qﬁk ) L’x { L.L Xm_ E‘:\’I
Certified Public Accountants’ CPA Uthman Mayanja
Kampala

21 September 2021
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East African Development Bank
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Statement of comprehensive income

Inferest income
Interest expense

Net interest income

Fee and commission income

Other operating income

Other losses

Net fair value {loss) gain on investment property
Net operating income

Net impairment losses on financial assets
Qperating income after impairment charges
Employes benefits expense

Depreciation and amortization

Other operating expenses

Profit before income tax
thcome tax expense

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income:

Gain on revaluation of land and buildings, net of
tax

Total comprehensive income

Farnings per share — basic and diluted {Expressed
in USD per shara)

Notes

il i

15(a}

8
20,21 22
9

10
11

34

12

2020 2019
usoroon  UoP “g
18,002 19,878
(4.166)  (5.404)
13,026 14474
330 416
1078 1543
(692) (83)
(254) 37
15,288 16,387
(593)  (156)
14,695 16,231
(3,634)  (3,517)
©09)  (902)
(3,787)  (3.081)
6365 8,731
6365 8,731
- 1,533
6,365 10,764
450.26 62192
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East African Development Bank
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Statement of financial position

Assefs

Cash at bank

Piacements with commercial banks
Loans and lease receivables
Equity investments

Other assels

tntangible assets

Property and equipment

Right of use assets

investment property

Total assets

Liabilities
Other liabilities
Borrowings
Lease habilities
Special funds
Grants

Capital fund

Total liahilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital

Share premium

Funds waiting allotment
Special reserve

Fair value reserve
Revaiuation reserves
Retainad earnings

Total shareholders' equity

Total shareholders’ equity and liabilities

The financial statements set out on pa

' Chauman Elﬂard of Directors

)
g

Notes

13
14
15
17
18
21
20
22
19

23
24
25
26
27
29

28
28
30
31
32
34

2020 2019
UsD'000  USD'000
17,223 12,971
195,752 177,543
129,045 148,638
1,112 1,200
526 997

25 102
13,089 14,050
435 554
18,656 18,910
375,863 374,965
9,461 9,865
75,337 86,082
458 554
3,900 3,990
189 578
7,479 7,479
96,914 108,548
195,094 189,824
3,874 3,874
80 83
12,602 12,557
382 451
2,355 9,396
56,662 50,232
278,949 266,417
375,863 374,965

Director General

35 23 o 1{}2 were approved and authorised for
.. 2021 and the Governing Council on
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East African Development Bank
Annual Report and Financial Statements

Statement of cash flows

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities

Intarest receipts

interest payments 24
Net fee and commission receipts

Other income received

Payments to employees and suppliers

Cash inflows from operating activities
Net change in loans and advances
Net other receipts from customers 6

Settlement of other liabilities

Net cash flows generated from operating
activitias

Investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment 20
Placements with commercial banks

Nef cash used in investing activitias

Financing activities

Settlement of medium and long term borrowings 24
Froceeds from borrowings 24
Receipt from member states towards share capital 30

Net cash used in financing acfivities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent at the start of the year 33
Foreign exchange losses/{gains}

At end of year 33

2020 2019
USD'000  USD'000
13,798 15,668
(3,298)  (4.607)
354 535

580 720

..... {6,573) _ (6.553)
4861 5763
18,916 9,715
1,032 457
(757) (891)

..... 24,052 15,044
(50) (60)
(36,003) (28,994)
(36,053)  (29,054)
{14,605}  (12,390)
3,980 8,049
6,167 -
._(4,458) _ (6,341)
(16,453}  {20,351)
153,800 174,169
_ 218 {18)
137,559 153,800
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East African Development Bank
Annual Report and Financial Statements

1. Reporting entity

East African Development Bank ("the Bank") was created under the Treaty for the East
African Co-operation of 1967, which was subsegquently amended and re-enacted as the
Treaty and Charter of the East African Development Bank {"The Charter”} in 1980 with
its current membership comprising the four East African Countries of Uganda, Kenya,
Tanzania and Rwanda with its head office in Kampala, Uganda. The Bank is primarily
involved in development finance lending and the provision of related services as
stipulated under its Charter.

The Bank’s principal office address is:

Piot 4 Nile Avenue
EADB Building
P. . Box 7128
Kampala, Uganda

For purposes of the Bank’s Charter, the profit and loss account is represented by the
statement of comprehensive income and the balance sheet is represented by the
staternent of financial position in these financial statements.

2. Principal accounting policies

The principal accounting palicies applied in the preparation of these financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years unless
otherwise stated.

A) Basis of preparation

The Bank's financial statements are prepared in compliance with internationat Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS™). Additional information required by the Bank's Charter is
inciuded within the financial statements where appropriate. The financial statements are
presented in the functional currency, United States Dollars {*USD'}, rounded to the
nearest thousand, and prepared on the historical cost basis, except where otherwise
stated in the accounting policies below.

The preparation of financiat statements in canformity with IFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. it also requires the Directors to exercise judgement in the
process of applying the Bank’s accounting policies. Changes in assumptions may have a
significant impact on the financial statements in the period the assumptions are changed.
The areas involving a higher degres of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in
MNote 35.
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East African Development Bank
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the yaar ended 31 December 2020

Notes {(continued}
2. Principal accounting policies (continued)
B} Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(1Y New and amended standards adopted by the Bank

The following standards and amendments have been applied by the Bank for the first

time for the financial year beginning 1 January 2020.

(a) IAS 1, ‘Presentation of financial statements’ and 1AS 8, 'Accounting policies,

changes in accounting estimates and errors’ on the definition of material
These amendments to IAS 1 and 1AS & and consequential amendments to other IFRSs:

{i} use a consistent definition of materiality through IFRSs and the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting;

(il clarify the explanation of the definition of materiat; and

(i)  Incorporate some of the guidance in IAS 1 about immaterial information.

The amended definition is:

“Information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected

to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpase financial
statemsnts make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial
information about a specific reporting entify.”

The adoption of these amendments is not expected to have an impact on the Bank's
financial statements.

{11} New and amended standards yet to be adopted by the Bank
IFRS 16, 'Leases’ COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions Amendment

The IASB has provided lessees (but not lessors) with relief in the form of an optional
exempiion from assessing whether a rent concession related to COVID-19 is a lease
maodification, provided that the concession meets certain conditions. Lesseas can elect
to account for qualifying rent concessions in the same way as they woukd if they were
not lease modifications. In many cases, this will result in accounting for the concession
as a variable lease payment. This amendment is effective for anhual periods beginning
on or after 1 June 2020,

Amendment to 1AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ en Classilication of
Liahilittes as Current or Non-current

The amendment clarifies that liabilites are classified as either current or non-current,
depending on the rights that exist at the end of the reporting pericd. Classification is
unaffected by expectations of the entity or events after the reporting date (for exampla,
the receipt of a waiver or a breach of covenant). This amendment effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022,




East African Development Bank
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Notes {continued}

2. Principal accounting policies (continued)
B) Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
{I} New and amended standards yet to be adopted by the Bank (continued)

Amendments to IAS 18 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ on Proceeds before
intended Use

The amendment to |AS 18 prohibits an entity from deducting frem the cost of an
item of PPE any proceeds received from selling ifems produced while the entity is
preparing the asset for its intended use {for exampie, the proceeds from selling
samples produced when testing a machine to see if it is functioning properly). The
proceeds from selling such items, together with the costs of producing them, are
recognised in profit or loss. This amendment is effective for annual pericds
beginning on or after 1 January 2022,

Armnual improvements cycle 2018 -2020

IFRS 9, ‘Financiat Instruments’ has been amended to include only those costs or
fees paid between the borrower and the lender in the calculation of "the 10% test’
for derecognition of a financial liability. Fees paid to third parties are excluded from
this calculation.

IFRS 186, ‘Leases’, amendment to the Hustrative Example 13 that accompanies
IFRS 16 to remove the illustration of payments from the lesser relating to leasehoid
improvements. The amendment intends to remove any potential confusion about
the treatment of lease incentives. This amendment is effective for annual periods
baginning on or after 1 January 2022.

The Bank did not early-adopt any new or amended standards in the financial year.

There are na other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective that would be
expected to have a material impact on the Bank.

C) Functional and presentation currency

items included in the Bank’s financial statements are measured using the currency of the
nrimary economic environment in which the Bank operates ('the functional currency’).
These financial statements are presented in United States Dollars (LSD), which is the
Bank’s functional currency. Except as indicated, the financial information has been
rounded off fo the nearest thousand.




East African Development Bank
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Notes (continued)

2. Principal accounting policies {continued)
C) Functional and presentation currency

Assets and Habilities expressed in various currencies are franslated into US Dollars at
rates of exchange ruling at the statement of financial position date. Transactions during
the year are converted at exchange rates riling at the transaction date. The resufting
differences from the conversion and translation of all transactions and balances are
dealt with in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

D) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-maker {CODM). The CODM, which is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Bank's Board of Directors.

E) Revenue recogrition
(i) Intsrest income and expense

interest income and expense for all interest-bearing financiat instruments are recognised
within ‘interest income’ or ‘interest expense’ respectively in the statement of profit or loss
using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is 2 method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or a financial fiability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or,
when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates cash flows considering all
confractual terms of the financial instrument {for example, prepayment options) but does
not consider future credit losges. The caloulation includes all fees and points paid or
raceived between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
issue or disposal of a financial asset or liability.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written dowin as a
result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognised using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss.
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East African Development Bank
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Notes (continued)

2, Principal accounting policies {continued)
E) Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income and expense presented in the statement of profit or loss includes
interest on financiat assets and liabilities at amortised cost on an effective interest rate
hasis.

(i) Fees and commission income

Fees and commission income that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial
asset or liability are included in the measurement of effective interest rate.

Other fees and commission income including account servicing fees are recognized as
the contractual service is performed per reguirement of IRFS 15, Revenue from
contracts with customers.

{iif}  Dividend income
Dividend income Is recognised when the right to receive dividends is established.
F) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes expenditures that are direcly
attributable to the acguisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the
cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the
asset to a working condition for its intended use, and the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. Purchased software
that is integrat to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that
equipment.

Freehold jand and buildings are measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation on
buildings and impairment losses recognised at the date of revaluation. Valuations are
nerformed with sufficient frequency to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does
not differ materially from its carrying amount.

Revaluation surplus

in accordance with tAS 16, the nature of revaluation surplus results from valuation of
assets with significant changes in fair value. The fair value of land and buildings is usually
determined from market-based evidence by appraisal that is done by professionally
gualified valuers after every three to five years.

Changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
aquity under revaluation surplus.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

Motes {continued)

2. Principal accounting policies {(continued)
F} Property, plant and equipment {continued)

A revaluation surplus is recorded in other comprehensive income and credited fo the
asset revaluation reserve in equity. However, to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
deficit of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, the increase is recognised
in profit and loss. A revaluation deficit is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent
that it offsets an existing surplus on the same asset recognised in the asset revaluation
reserve.

An annual transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to retained eamings is made for the
difference between depreciation based on the revaiued carrying amount of the asset and
depreciation based on the asset’s original cost.

Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is efiminated against the
gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revaluied amount
of the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset being
sold is transferred to retained eamings.

Management and Directors review the residual value and usefut life of an asset at the
year end and any change considered to be appropriate in accounting estimate is recorded
through the statement of comprehensive incoms.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of the property and equipmenton a
straight-line basis over the expected useful lives of the assets concerned. The rates for
depreciation used are as follows!

Buildings 5.0%

Motor vehicles 25.0%

Office equipment 10.0% - 25.0%
Furniture 12.5%

Gains and losses on disposal of property and equipment are determined by reference 1o
their carrying amount and are taken into account in determining the result for the year.

G) Intangible assets

Computer software costs which are clearly identifiable and cantrolied by the Bank and
have probable benefits exceeding the costs beyond one ysar are recognised as an
intangible asset. intangible assets are stated at cost net of accumulated amortization
and impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure on software is capitalized only when it increases the future
aconemic benefits embodied in specific assets to which it relates. All other expenditure
is expensed as incurred.
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G) Intangible assets (continued)

Amortization is recognized in statement of profit or loss on a straight line basis over an
astimated usefu! life of software from the date that it is available for users. The
estimated useful life of the software is four years.

H) Capital work-in-progress

Assets in the course of construction (capital work-in-progress) are not depreciated.
Upon cempletion of the project the accumulated cost is transferred {o an appropriate
asset category where it is depreciated according to the policy.

1} Financial assets and liabilities

Measurement methods
Amortized cost and effective interest rate

The amortised cost is the amount at which the financial asset or financial lizbility is
measured at initial racognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between
that initial ameunt and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any
loss allowance.

The offective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or financial Hability
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset (i.e. its amortised cost before any
impairment allowance) or to the amoriised cost of a financial liabdity. The catcutation
does not consider expected credit osses and includes transaction costs, premiums of
discounts and fees and points paid or received that are integral to the effective interest
rata, such as origination fees.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. At initial recognition, the Bank measures
a financial asset or financial liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a
financial asset or financial liability not at fair vaiue through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the
financial asset or financial liability, such as fees and commissions.

Transaction costs of financial assets and financial liabiities carried at fair vaiue through
profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. Immediately after iniial recognition, an
expected credit loss allowance (ECL) is recognized for financial assets measured at
amortized cost and investments in debt instruments measured at FVOCI, which results
in an accounting loss being recognized in profit or joss when an asset is newly
originated.
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} Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

When the fair value of financial assets and liabiiities differs from the fransaction price

on inifial recognition, the Bank recognises the difference as follows:

When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an
identical asset or liability (i.e. a Level 1 input) or based on a valuation technique that
uses only data from observable markets, the difference is recognised as a gain or
loss.

In al other cases, the difference is deferred and the timing of recagnition of deferred
day one profit or loss is determined individually. it is either amortised over the life of

the instrument, deferred until the instrument's fair value can be determined using
market observable inputs, or realised through settiement.

{a) Financial Assets
{i} Classification and subsequent measurement

The Bank appiies IFRS 9 and classifies its financial assets in the foilowing
measurement categories:

» Fair value through profif or loss (FVPL);
» Fair value through other comprehensive income (FYOCI); or
« Amortized cost.

The classification requirements for debt and equity instruments are described below:
Debt instrinments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a financial Fability
fram the issuer's perspective, such as loans, government and corporate bonds and
trade receivables purchased from clients in factoring arrangements without recourss.

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments depend on:

(i} The Bank’s business model for managing the asset; and
(i) The cash flow characteristics of the asset.
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2. Principal accounting policies (continuec)

)  Financial assets and liabilities {(continued)
(i} Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)
Debt instruments (confinued}

Based on these factors, the Bank classifies its debt instruments into one of the
following three measurement categories:

+ Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of confractuat cash flows
where those cash flows represent solaly payments of principatl and interest
{*SPPI'}, and that are not designated at FVPL, are measured at amortized cost.
The carrying amount of these assets is adjusted by any expected credit loss
allowance recognized. Interest income from these financial assets is included in
‘Interest and similar income’ using tha effective interest rate methed.

« Fair valua through other comprehensive income (FVOCH): Financial assets that
are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the assets, where
the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, and
that are not designated at FVPL, are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FYOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through Other Comprehensive income (QCH), execept for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and
losses on the instrument’s amortized cost which are recognized in profit or loss.
When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumuiative gain or loss previously
recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity fo profit or loss and recognized in
‘Net Investment income’. interest income from these financial assets is included
in ‘interest income’ using the effective interest rate method.

+ Fair value through profii or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortized cost or FYOC! are measured at fair value through profit or [oss. A gain
or loss on a debt investment that is subseguently measured at fair value through
profit or foss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognized in profit or
loss and presented in the profit or loss stalement within ‘Net frading income’ in
the period in which it arises, unless it arises from debt instruments that were
designated at fair value or which are not hetd for trading, in which case they are
presented separately in ‘Net investment income’. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in ‘Interest income’ using the effective interest rate
method.

Business model: the business model reflects how the Bank manages the assets in
order fo generate cash flows. Thatis, whether the Bank’s objective is solely to coilect
the contractual cash fiows from the assets or is to collect both the contractual cash
flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If neither of these is applicabie
{e.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes), then the financial assets are
classified as part of ‘other’ business mode! and measured at FVPL.
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2. Principal accounting policies (continued)
1) Financial assets and liabilities (continued}

Factors considered by the Bank in determining the business model for a group of
assets include past experience on how the cash flows for these assets were coliected,
how the asset's performance is evaluated and reported to key management personnel,
haw risks are assessed and managed and how managers are compensated.

An example is the liquidity portfolio of assets, which is held by the Bank as part of
liquidity management and is generally classified within the hold to collect and sell
businass model.

Securities held for trading are held principally for the purpose of selling in the near term
or are part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are managed together and for
which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking. These
securities are classified in the ‘other’ business model and measured at FVPL.

SPP Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or {o
collect contractuat cash flows and sell, the Bank assesses whether the financial
instruments’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest {the 'SPPI
test'). In making this assessment, the Bank considers whether the contractual cash
flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest includes only
consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a
profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual
terms infroduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending
arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

The Bank reclassifies debt investmenis when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes. The reclassification takes place from the start of the
first reporting period following the change. Such changes are expected to be very
infrequent and none occurred during the period.

Equity insfruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from the issuer's
perspective; that is, instruments that do not contain a contractual obligation to pay and
that evidence a residual interest in the issuer's net assets. Examples of equity
instruments include basic ordinary shares.
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1} Financial assets and liabilities (continued}

The Bank subseguently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or
loss, except where the Bank management has elected, at initial recognition, to
irrevocably designate an equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive
income. The Bank policy is to designate equity investments as FVOCI when those
investments are held for purposes other than to generate investment returns. When this
election is used, fair value gains and losses are recognised in OCl and are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal. Impairment losses
(and reversal of impairment losses} are not reported separately from other changes i
fair value.

Dividends, when representing a return on such investments, continue to be recagnised
in profit or loss as other income when the Bank’s right to receive payments is
established. Gains and fosses on equity investments at FVPL are included in the Net
trading income Iine in the statement of profit or foss.

(ii) impairment

The Bank assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated
with its debt instrument assets carried at amortised cost and FVOC! and with the
exposure arising from loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts.

The Bank recognises a loss aliowance for such losses at each reporting date. The
measuremant of expected credit loss {ECL} reflects:

= An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is defermined by evaluating a
range of possible oufcomes,

« The time vafue of money; and

« Reasonable and suppertable information that is available without undue cost or
effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

(iti} Modification of loans
As a long term lender, it is not unusual for the Bank fo renegotiate or otherwise modify

the contractual cash flows of loans to customers. When this happens, the Bank
assessaes whether ar not the new terms are substaniially different to the original terms.
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2. Principal accounting policies {continued)
} Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(i Modification of loans {(continued)

The Bank dogs this by considering, among others, the following factors:

+ |f the borrower is in financial difficully, whether the modification merely reduces
the contractual cash flows to amounts the borrower is expected to be able to

pay.

+ Whether any substantial new terms are introduced, such as a profit sharefequity-
based return that substantiaily affects the risk profile of the loan.

» Significant extensicn of the loan term when the borrower is not in financial
difficulty.

= Significant change in the interest rate.

+ Change in the currency the foan is denominated in.

s Insertion of collateral, other security or eradit enhancements that significantly
affect the credit risk associated with the loan.

If the terms are substantially different, the Bank derecognises the original financial
asset and recognizes a ‘new' asset at fair value and recaicuiates a new effective
interest rate for the asset. The date of renegotiation is consequentiy considered fo be
the date of initial recognition for impairment caiculation purposes, including for the
purpose of determining whethar a significant increase in credit risk has occurred.
However, the Bank also assesses whether the new financial asset recognised is
daemed to be credit-impaired at initial recognition, espeacially in circumstances where
the renegotiation was driven by the debtor being unable to make the originally agreed
payments. Differences in the carrying amount are also recognised in profit or loss as a
gain or loss on derecognition.

If the terms are not substantiaily different, the renegotiation or modification does not
result in derecognifien, and the Bank recalculates the gross carrying amount based on
the revised cash flows of the financial asset and recognises a modification gain or loss
in profit or loss.

{iv) Derecognition other than modification

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are de-recognised when the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows from the assets have expired, or when the Bank assesses that
the possibility for such cash flow is remote especially when a loan remains in non-
performing category for long period without being turned around successfully.
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1} Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(iv} Derecognition other than modification(continued)

In most cases the Bank continues to follow up for repayments and when cashflows can
he ascertained with reasonable degree of certainty then recognition of the expected
cashflow is included in the financial statements. In other cases recognition is made
when actual collection happens.

{b) Financtal liabilities
(i) Classification and subsequent measurement

In both the current and prior period, financial liabilities are classified as subssqguently
measured at amortised cost, except loan commitments.

{ii) Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished (i.e. when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires).

The exchange between the Bank and its original lenders of debt instruments with
substantially different terms, as wel} as substantial modifications of the terms of existing
financial liabilities, are accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial
liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The terms are substantially
different if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the new terms,
including any fees paid net of any fees recelved and discounted using the originat
effective interest rate, is at least 10% different from the discounted present value of the
remaihing cash flows of the original financiat liability. In addition, other qualitative
factors, such as the currency that the instrument is denominated in, changes in the type
of interest rate, new conversion featuras attached to the instrument and change in
covenants are also taken into consideration. If an exchange of debt instruments or
modification of terms is aceounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred
are recognised as part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. If the exchange or
maodification is not accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred
adjust the carrying amount of the liability and are amartised over the remaining term of
the maodified liability.
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(4} Derivative instruments

The Bank uses derivative instruments in its portfolios for assetfliability management,
and risk managemant. These instruments are mainly cross-currency swaps and interest
rata swaps. The derivatives are used to manage exposure to currency risk which arises
when the Rank issues loans in the local currencies of member states out of
predominantly USD denominated borrowings. The interest component of the
derivatives is reported as part of interest income and expense.

The Bank classifies all derivatives as held-for-trading and these are measured at fair
value, with all changes in fair value recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income.

Derivatives embedded in ather financial instruments or other non-financial host
contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are
not closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract is not carried at
fair value with unrealised gains or losses reported in profit or foss. Where material, such
derivatives are separated from the host contract and measured at fair value with
unrealised gains and losses reported in the statement of comprehensive income.

K) impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Bank's assets are reviewed at each statement of financial
position date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such a
condition exists, the assets' recoverable amount is estimated and an impairment loss
recognised in the statement of cormprehensive income whenever the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds the recoverable amount.

L} Fiduciary assets

Assets held in a fiduciary capacity are not freated as assets of the Bank in the statement
of financiat position.

M) Leases

At inception of a contract, the Bank assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease. A confract is, or contains, a lease if the confract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess
whether a contract conveys the right to contral the use of an identified asset, the Bank
uses the definition of a lease in IFRS 16.
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M)} Leases

i. Bank acting as a lessee

At commencement or an medification of a contract that contains a lease component,
the Bank aliocates consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis
of its refative standalone price. However, for leases of branches and office premises the
Bank has elected not to separate non-lease components and accounts for the lease
and non-lease components as a single lease component. The Bank recognises a right-
of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use
asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liakility adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement dale,
plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
any improvaments made to branches or office premises. The right-of-use asset is
stibsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date
to the end of the lease term. in addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced
by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the

lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that
are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Bank’s incremenial borrowing
rate. Generally, the Bank uses s incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. The
Bank determines its incremental borrowing rate by analysing its borrowings from
various external sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the
lease and type of asset leased. Lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise the following: — fixed payments, including in-substance fixed
payments; — variable lease payments that depend on an index or & rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date; — amounts expectad
to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and — the exercise price under a
purchase option that the Bank is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an
optional renewal period i the Bank is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
option, and penaities for early termination of a lease unless the Bank is reasonably
certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It
is remeasured when there is a change in future lease paymenis arising from a change
in an index or rate, if there is a changs in the Bank’s estimate of the amount expected
to be payable under a residual vaiue guarantee, if the Bank changes its assessment of
whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if there is a
revised in-substance fixed lease payment. When the iease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the righi-of-use asset has
been reduced to zero.
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M) Leases (continued)
Short-term feases and leases of low-valus assets

The Bank has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilifies for
leases of low-value assets and shor-term leases, including leaseas of IT equipmant.
The Bank recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense
an a straight-line basis over the lease term.

ii. Bank acting as a lessor

At inception or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Bank
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of
their relative stand-alone selling prices. When the Bank acts as a lessor, it determings
at lease inception whether the lease is a finance lease or an operating lease. To
classify each iease, the Bank makes an overall assessment of whether the lease
transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards incidentat to ownership of the
underlying asset. if this is the case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then it is an
operating lease.

As part of this assessment, the Bank considers certain indicators such as whether the
lease is for the major part of the economic life of the asset. The Bank applies the
derecognition and impairment requirements in IFRS 9 fo the net investment in the
lease. The Bank further regularly reviews estimated unguaranteed residual values used
in cafculating the gross investment in the lease.

N) Offsetting
Financial assets and liabilities are only offset and the net amount reparted in the
statement of financial position where there is a legally enforceable right to set off the

recognised amounts and the Bank intends {o either settie on a net basis, or realize the
assat and seitle the fiability simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis when permitted by the accounting
standard or for gains and losses arising from a group of similar transactions.

During the year there was no offsetting transaction (2019: Nil).
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Q) Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Bank has a present tegal or
consiructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to setile the obligation. Provisions are determined
by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability.

Where the Bank expacts a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain.

P} Employees benefits
i} Retirement obligations

The Bank operates a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme to which
employees contribute 10% of their basic salary and the Bank contributes 10%, 12.5%
or 15% of the employees' hasic salary depending on his/her length of service. The
Bank complies with Member States regulations with respect to social security
contricutions where applicable.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Bank pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Bank has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees
the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined contribution pian. Typically
defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors, such as age, years of service
and compensation.

The Bank's contributions to the schemse are charged to the statement of profit or loss in
the year in which they are made. Caosts relating to early retirement are charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the year in which they are incurred.

H} Service gratuity
The Director General is entitled to contract gratuity squivalent to 20% of the annual gross

salary. Gratuity is accounted for on an accruals basis. An accrual for the amount payable
is made each year and is charged to the statement of profit or loss.
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2. Principal accounting policies {continued}
P} Employees benefits {(continued}

iy Retirement obligations {continued}

iliy Other entitlements

The estimated monetary liability for employees' accrued annual leave enfitlement at the
reparting date is recognised as an expense accrual.

Q) Investment properties

Properties held for long-term rental yields that are not occcupiad by the Bank are
classified as investment properties.

Certain properties of the Bank consist of a portion that is held for rental and a portion
used for administrative purposes or occupied by Bank staff. In respect to such
properties, portions that are held for rental yields or capital appreciation and can be
leased or sold separately have been accounted for as investment property.

The properties held purely for rental yields have baan classified under investment
property. When the use of property changes from owner occupied to investment
property, the property is re-measured at fair value and reclassified as investmant
property. Any gain arising on revaluation is recognized through other comprehensive
income. Any loss arising on revaiuation is recognized through the surplus or deficit.

R) Grants

Grants are racognised af their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and ail attaching conditions will be complied with.

When the grant relates to an expense itam, {revenue grant) it is recognised as income
over periods necassary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it is
intended to compensata. Where the grant relates to an asset, (capital grant} itis
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on a systematic basis over the
expected usaful life of the relevant asset.

5} Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise

of cash with Banks held as demand and time deposits with original maturities of less
than 20 days.
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2. Principal accounting policies {continued)
T} Contingent liabilities — Financial guarantees and loan commitments

Letters of credif acceptances and guarantees are accounted for as Off-Balance Sheet
itemns and described as contingent liabilities,

Financial guarantee contracts require the issuer to make pre-agreed paymenis to
reimburse the holder for loss incurred because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to Banks, financial institutions and others on behalf of customers
to secure loans, overdrafts and other Banking facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at
the higher of;

« The amount of loss allowance; and
« The premium received on initial recognitions less income recognized in
accordance with the principles of IFRS 15.

Loan commifments provided by the Bank are measured as the amount of the loss
atlowance assuming the customer draws on fhe loan. However, the drawdown from the
loans commitments is subject to fulfiiments of conditions agreed in the lean contract
and therefore the provision takes into account such conditions.

U} Taxation

in accordance with Article 49 of the Bank's Charter, the Bank, its property, other assets,
incoma and its operations and transactions are exempt from ali taxation and custom
duties within member countries.

V} Dividends

Dividends on ordinary shares are charged to equity in the period in which they are
dectared. Proposed dividends are shown as a separate component of squity until
declared.

W) Comparatives

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in
presentation in the current year,
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3 Interest income

Interest income on lecans to projects
Interest incorme on lease receivables
Interest income on deposits with other Banks

4 Interest expense

interest expense on medium and long term
borrowings
Inferest expense on lines of credit

5  Fee and commission income = net

Gross fees and commission income
Appraisal fees

Other fees and commission income
Commitment fees

Gross fees and commission expense
Commission charges

Commitment fees

Other fees and commission expense

MNet fee and commission income

6 Other operating income

Rent income

Dividend income

Recovery of previously written off loans
Grant income (Note 27)

Other incoma on asset leasing

Write back of other liabilities

2020
UsD ‘000

12,124

2019
usp ‘coo

13,868




East African Development Bank
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Notes (continued)

7 Other losses

Net foreign exchange gain/(losses)

Finance costs (lease interest expense)

Net fair value (losses) on equity investments
at fair vaiue (Note 17)

8 Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages
Pension and gratuity {Note 37)
Cther staff costs

9  Other operating expenses

Staff duty travel

Directors expenses

Insurance

Advertising and publicity
Legal fees

Repairs and maintenance
Computer software expenses
Other IT related expenses
internal audit costs

Statuiory audit feas
Consuliancy fees

Project insurance

Subscription to professional bodies
Scholarships {Note 27}

Other administrative expenses

2020 2019
USD ‘000  USD ‘000
(581) 29
43) (38)
(68) (74)

. (892) _  (83)
2,525 2,455
336 327

_ 17y 7%
3,634 3,517
36 166

48 58

293 235

38 225
1,288 453
81 103

157 144

: 1

68 27

55 59

174 202
274 354

42 9

312 236
921 816
3787 3081
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10 Expenses by nature

11

12

Profit before income tax is stated after charging the following:

2020 2019
UsSD ‘000 USD ‘000

Directors emotumeants:

- Fees and allowances 41 28
- Other Board expenses 7 30
Depreciation on property and equipment (note 20) 712 702
Depreciation of right-of-use asset {nots 22) 119 123
Amortization of intangible assets {note 21) 79 78
Impairment of loans and advances (note 16) 593 156
Employee benefits expense (Note 8) 3,634 3517
Auditors remuneration 55 52
Operating expenses 3,684 2,871
Taxation

In accordance with Article 49 of the Bank’s Charter, the Bank, its property, other
assets, income and its operations and transactions are exempt from all taxation
and custom duties within member countries.

Earnings per share — basic and diluted

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year
attributabie to ordinary sharehoiders by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is calcuiated by adjusting the weighted average number
of ardinary shares for the number of shares not yet issued but for which payments
have been received by the Bank.

2020 2019
UsD ‘000 USD ‘000

Net profit aitributable to ordinary shareholders 6,365 8,731
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue and

paid up during the year (Note 28) 14,137 14,061
Basic earnings per share 450.26 621.92
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12 Earnings per share - basic and diluted {continued) 2020 2019
Earnings per share — basic and diluted
Dilutive number of ordinary shares 6 6
Total issued and dilutive shares 14,143 14,067
Diluted earnings per share 450.07 5§21.64

Dilutive shares represent the number of shares generated from the balance of funds awaiting
allotment {Note 30).

13 Cash at bank 2020 2019
USD ‘000 U3D “000

Cash at bank 17,223 12,971

14 Placements with commercial banks
Placements with banks in member states

Principal 164,790 150,549

Interest receivable 946 920

Placements with overseas banks

Principal 30,000 26,000

interest receivable 16 4
195,752 177,543

The above amount is analyzed as follows:

Amounts due within 3 months of date of acquisition 120,336 140,829

Amounts due after 3 months of date of acguisition 75,416 36,714
195,752 177,543

The weighted average effective interest rate on deposits due from banks was 3.42
% (2019 3.53 %).
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15 Loans and lease receivables 2020 2019
uspoGo UsD‘000
Loans to projects (Gross)

Principal 129,780 147,983
interest receivable 3246 4033
Gross loans 133,026 152,026
Impairment losses on loans and advances {Note 15a) (3,981} {3.388)
Net carrying amounts 129,045 148,638

Credit impairment losses

In table below is an analysis of the movement in the provision for impairment of loans
and advances.

2020 2019

usp‘oo0  USD'000

At start of year, as previously siated 3,388 3232
Movement in profit or loss:

Increase in pravision for expected credit losses 583 156

Impairment charge to profit or loss 593 156

Loss allowance at end of year _ 3,981 3,388

The table below shows the distribution of loans and receivables by sector

Distribution of loans and receivables by sector 2020 2019
Agro, marine ang food processing 8% 7%
Consfruction companies, building materials and real estate 22% 26%
Financial institutions 40% 39%
Edueation, health and other community setvices 13% 8%
Electricity 13% 15%
Haotels, tourism, leisure and entertainment 6% 5%

100%  __ 100%
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16

Segment information

Management has determined the operating segments based on information
reviewed by the Board of Directors for the purpose of allocating resources and
assessing performance. The Board of Directors considers the business from both
a geographic and product perspective. Geographically, the Board considers the

performance in Kenya, Uganda, Tanzania and Rwanda.

The reportable operating segments derive their revenue primarily from lending to
foster development through various products such as project loans, leases and

aquity.

The Board assesses the performance of the operating segments based on a
measure of gross loans and advances to customers, portfolio quality, approvals,
dishursemenis and profit. The measure excludes the effects of unrealised gains
or losses on financial instruments. Interest expenditure is not allocated o
segments, as this type of activity is part of managing the cash position of the

Bank by treasury.

The segment information provided to the Board of Directors for the reportable
segments for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 respectively is as

follows:

Loan exposure by counfry

Year ended 31 December 2020

Loan exposure by country

Country
Uganda
Kenya
Tanzania
Rwanda

Total

Expaosure by product
Country

Long term ioans
Medium term ioans
Short term loans

Total

Gross Balances o Net Balances %%
usp'ocg USD'eo0

40 931 31 % 40,187 %

33,587 25% 30,704 24%

44, 486 33% 44 140 34%

14,(_]22 11% 14,{}1_4 11%

133,026 100%, 129,045 100%

Gross Balances D Met Balances %o
uUsDoo0 UsSD'00d

122,499 o2 118,686 2%

3,800 3% 3,868 3%

6,827 5o 5,401 5%

133,026 100% 128,045  100%
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186 Segment information (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2018

Lean exposure by country

Gross Net o
Country Balances " Balances Y
UsD'ocd usDood
Uganda 39,412 26% 39,068 26%
Kenya 38,560 24% 34,226 23%
Tanzania 58,432 38% 58,052 38%
Rwanda 17,3156 12% 17,292 12%
Total Region 152,026 100% 148,638 100%
Exposure by preduct
Product
Long term loans 137,279 20% 134,139 0%
Medium term loans 13,685 9% 13,622 9%
Short term Ivans 1,062 1% BTV 1%
l.oans sub-total 152,026 100% 148,638  100%
Year endad 31 December 2020
Portfolio quality {Gross}
Performing o MNan performing

Country portfolla Yo portfolio %2 Totals

UsD'ood usD'0f)
Kenya 28,960 22% 4,627 A% 33,587
Rwanda 14,022 11% - 0% 14,022
Tanzania 44,151 33% 335 0% 44486
Uganda 37 985 28% 2,966 2% 40,931
Totals 125,008 95% 7.928 6% 133,026
Partfolio quality (Net)

Performing Non performing

Country portfolio % portfolio Y Totals

usproon Usb'ood
Kenya 26,857 21% 3,847 3% 30,704
Rwanda 14,014 11% - 0% 14,014
Tanzania 43,6838 34% 302 0% 44,140
Uganda - 37,511 29% 2,676 2% 40187
Totals 122,220 95% 6,825 5% 129,045
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16 Segment information (continued)
Portfolio quality {continued)
Year ended 31 December 2019
Portfolio quality {Gross)

Performing o,

Non perforniing o

Country portfolio portfolio Totals
uspoon usp'ano
Kerya 32,608 21% 4,252 3% 35,800
Rwanda 17,316 11%, - 0% 17,316
Tanzania 58,135 38% 303 D% 58,438
Uganda 36,747 24%, 2 665 2% 39,412
Totals 144,806 4% 7,220 5% 152,026
Portfolio quality {Net)
Performing Non performing
Country portfollo Yo portfolio %  Totals
UsDooo usp'ond
Kenya 30,391 20% 3,835 3% 34,228
Rwanda 17,292 12% - 0% 17,202
Tanzania 57,778 39% 274 0% 58,052
Uganda 36,663 25% 2,405 2% 38,068
Totals 142,124 96% 6,514 5% 144,638
Approvals and disbursements
Appravals Dishursements
Actual Actual
Actual 2020 2019 Actual 2020 2019
usD'edn UsSD’000 Usp'eoo usD’o0n
By country
Uganda 7.805 13,075 9,168 7,716
Kanya 2,459 3,659 2,221 3,588
Tanzania - 10,000 - 10,000
Rwanda G600 G,000 - -
10,874 32,734 11,388 21,314
By product
Loans 10,874 32,734 11,389 21,314
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16 Segment information (continued)

Segment statement of profit or loss for year ended December 2020

Uganda Kenya Tanzania Rwanda Dl-il‘?iig Total
UED'00¢ USD'000 usD'eoo UsD'ooD usoraod UsD0d
Interest income 3,570 3,444 4,002 1,100 5987 18,092
Interast expanse {912} (B37) £311} {22} {2,084} {4,168}
Net interest income 2,667 2,607 3.6M 1,078 3,883 13,926
Fee and commission
mcome 1449 54 124 67 f64) 330
Other operating income 3 g80 3 i g8z 1,078
{Hher gains {losses) 347 {1.158} 11 15 94 {592)
ket fair value gaini{loss}
investment property - - {154} - {108 {254)
Total aperating income 3,166 2491 3,675 1,161 4,785 15,288
Cradit impairment
galniloss) {401} (248) 41 16 - {593)
Oparating ingcome after
impairment charges 2,765 2,242 376 1,477 4795 14,695
Employee benefits
expense {552} {211) {191} {80} {2,530} {3,634}
Depreciation and
amcrtization - {79 {19) {57} {754} {900}
Ciher operating expenses [757) {757) {7o7) (379} {1,137} {3,787}
Profit before income tax 1,456 1,185 2,749 651 314 8,365
Income tax expense - - - - - -
Profit for the year 1,456 1,185 2,749 6514 314 6,365
Othar camprahensive
income - - - - . -
Total comprehensive
Income 1,456 1,195 2749 651 314 6,365
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16 Segment information {continued)

Segment statement of profit or loss for year ended December 2019

Uganda Kenya Tanzania  Rwanda Head Ofice Total
usD'go0  USDT000 usD'ood  UsD'aoo0 usp'oog  LISDYI00
Interest income 3,630 3874 4,972 1,601 5,901 15,878
Interest expense _ 1,182y (1.094) {404} {29y {2.683) {5,404
MNet interest income 2,438 2,780 4, 566 1,472 3,218 14,474
Fee and commissian mcame 143 54 148 a0 {24) 416
Olher operating inceme 137 321 - - 1,085 1,543
Other gainsi{losses) 255 85 {813 1 {323} {837
Met fair value gainf{loss)
investmant property a0 - 31 - o 37
Total operating Income 3,013 3,225 4,630 1,563 3,956 16,387
Crelt Bnpairment gaini{loss) 18 {209} 26 e} " (156}
Operating income after
impairment charges 3,031 3,016 4,656 1,572 3,956 16,231
Employee benefits expanse {845) {924 (B59) (283} {811} {3.517)
Depraciation and amortization - {32) {20} {56) {7dd} {002
Other operating expenses {B16) (1B} f616) (308} {225}  (3.081)
Profit before income tax 1,570 1,398 3,31 g26 1,476 8731

Income (ax expense - - “ - . -

Profit for the ysar 1,565 1,388 3,361 926 4,476 8,731
COther comprehensive incame - -

Total comprehensive income 1,568 1,298 3,361 926 1,478 8,731
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16 Segment infermation {continued)

Segment statement of financial position for year ended December 2020

Liganda Kenya  Tanzania Rwanda :f:!izg Total
Assets UsSD'OD0 USD'D0¢  USD'000  USD'O0D USD'000  USD'000
Cash at bank 7. 778 7427 40 GB 1,801 17,223
Placements with olher Banks - - - - 1957452 195,752
Loans and lease receivables 40,187 30,704 44,140 14,014 - 128,045
Eguity investments - 527 535 - - 1,412
Other assafs 148 167 &8 22 120 B26
Investment properties 14.609 - 4,047 - - 18,626
Property and equipment 10,714 1,233 1,138 4 - 13,089
Right of use assets - 200 - 235 - 435
Intangible asssts L - - - - 25 29
Total assets . 13,437 40,258 50,027 14,343 197,798 375,863
Llakilities
Other Habilities - 5,800 - - 3.861 3,461
Borrowings 23,461 17,925 25 769 8,182 - 75,337
Laasze fiability - 233 - 225 - 458
Spacial funds - - - - 3,890 3,090
Grants - - 150 - 39 188
Capitat fund - - - - 7479 7479
Total liabilities 23461 23,258 25,919 8,407 15,160 96,914
Capital and reserves
Share capital 51,300 £1,300 51,300 18,050 24044 195,984
Share pramtium - - - - 3,874 3,874
Funds waiting alloimant - - - B 80
Special resarve - - - - 12,602 12,602
Fair valus resetve - - - 382 382
Revaluation reserves - - - - 8,355 0 355
Relained earnings {1,324} {35,000} f27 192) {12,114} 132282 56,662
Total sharehclders' equity 40,976 16,300 24,108 5936 182,629 278,549
Total sharsholders’ equity
and liabillties 13,437 40,258 50,027 14,343 197,798 375,863
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16

Segment information {continued)

Segment statement of financial position for year endad December 2319

Assets

Cash at hank

Placemants with other Banks
Loans and laase receivables
Equity invasiments

Other assats

Investment properties
Property and eguipment
Right of use assets
Intangible assets

Totai assets

Liabilities
QOther liabllties
Borrowings
Lease liability
Speciat funds
Grants

Capital fund

Total liabillties

Capital and ragserves
Share capltal

Share premium

Fungs waiting allotment
Special reserve

Fair value resarve
Revaliation resarnves
Retained earnings

Total sharehoiders’ equity

Total sharaholders’ eguity
and liabilitles

Uganda Kenya Tanzania Rwanda Head office  Total
UsD'0o0 USD'ODG  USD'000 USD'000 USD'G0D  USD'DOC
4,144 7.743 1 86 9587 12,971
- - - 177,543 177,543
A8 A23 32,788 k3,550 17,282 1,176 148,638
- 528 671 - - 1,200
160 124 g8 15 g30 =}
14 708 - 4,202 - - 18,810
14,831 1,477 1,638 4 14,050
- 264 - 250 - 554
- - - - 102 102
69,666 42,625 64,539 17,697 180,428 374,965
- 7,900 - - 1,865 9,865
171687 19,468 2,478 435 30,534 86,082
g2 272 - 544
- - - - 3,000 3,990
- - t50 - 428 578
- - 1474 7,479
17,167 27,650 9,628 707 53,396 108,548
21123 24,556 34,001 5,740 104,314 189,824
- - - 3574 - 3,874
- - - - 83 B3
- - - - 12,557 12,557
451 451
- - . - 9,394 8,386
__ 18,190 18,728 13,003 7006 {3,685} 50,232
333 41,284 47,094 17,610 123,116 286,417
54,480 68,934 66,722 18,317 176,512 374,965
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18

19

Equity investments at fair value

The Bank advances financing in the form of aquity in exceptional cases where the
project is assessed to have a significant impact on the community and its
development as well as where the equity participation is necessary for improving the
capital structure of the company or where the sponsors are unable fo raise additicnat
equity to enable the borrower operate on a commercially sound footing. Usually these
are companies, which have substantial development impact but whose cash flows
cannot suppart continuous repayments for long term loans. Thase investments are
reported at their fair values in accordance with the Bank's accounting policies.

Equity investments 2020 2019
UsSD ‘000  USD ‘000
At start of year 1,200 1,273
Less:
Investments that matured during the year - -
Revaluation loss (20) -
Fair value loss {68) (73}
At end of year 1,112 1,200

Other assets

Prepayments 142 147
Value Added Tax receivable 405 368
Fees and commission receivahle 60 108
Tenants rent receivable 42 23
Receivables from projects 1,048 177
Other receivables 345 173
2,042 997

Provision on other receivables (1,516} -
526 agv

AT

The receivables from projects relates to costs incurred in respect of projects under
receivership and have been fully pravided.

Investment property

At start of year 18,910 18,873
Net fair vaiue (loss)f gain (254) 37
At end of year 18,656 18,810
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An independent valuation of the Bank’s land and buildings was performed by
nrofessional valuers Knight Frank Limited {Uganda and Kenya) and Africa Property
Limited {Tanzania) to determine the fair value of the land and buiidings as at 31
December 2020 based on estimated open market values.

Properties that are held by the Bank for generation of rental income have been
classified under investment property as per Note 19. Land and buildings ocecupied by
the Bank for administrative use is classified under property, plant and eguipment {Note
20).

The table below shows revenue, costs and capital commitments related to investment
propearty:

2020 2019

UsD ‘000 USD ‘000

Rental income from investment property 421 540
Direct operating expenses: Rented properties 53 57
Direct operating expenses: Unrented properties 15 17
Approved capital commitment " 305

The following table analyses the non-financial assets carried at fair value, by valuation
method. The different levels have been defined as follows:

« Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Leve!

1).

« fnputs for the year ended 31 December 2020 other than quoted prices inciuded
within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices} (Level 2).

» Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs} {Level 3).

Quoted prices in Significant other  Significant

active markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs {Level
Fair value measurements {Level 1} {Level 2} 3)
usDo0o0 UsD’000 UsSDG00
2020
l.ahd - 21,831 -
Buildings - 9,901 -
2019
Land - 21,754 -
Buildings - 10,151 -
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20

21

22

Property and equipment (continued)

The revaluation model under FAS 16 — Property, plant and equipment has been applied
to land and buildings under own-use (this includes residential properties rented out fo
staff). An independent valuation was performed by a professional valuer (Knight Frank
Limitec and Africa Property Limited) to determine the fair value of land and buildings as
at 31 December 2018, The fair value of tand and buildings is usually determined from
market-based evidence by appraisal that is done by professionally qualified valuers
after every three to five years, therefore, no fair value revaluation gain has been
recognised in the year.

if land and buildings were stated on the historical cost basis, the amounts would be
as follows:

2020 2019
UsD 000 usD’ooo
Cost 8,759 8,75h9
Accumulated depraciation {5,562) (5,129)
Net book amount 3,197 3,634
Intangible assets
Cost
At start of year 1,963 1,963
Additions during the year 2 -
1,965 1,963
Amortization
At start of year (1,861) (1,783)
Amortization charge for the year {79) {78)
(1,940} {1.861)
At end of year 25 102

Right-of-use assets

Under 1AS 17 — Leases, prepaid operating lease rentals were recognised at historical
cost and subseguently amortised over the lease period. In respect of the change in
accounting policy to IFRS 16 — Leases, the carrying amount of prepaid operating
lease rentals at 1 January 2018 were reclassified as right-of-use assets specifically in
respect to the Bank's rented office premises in Kenya and Rwanda. The average
lease term is 2 years and 3 years, respectively.
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22 Right-of-use assets (continued}

23

24

Year ended 31 December 2019
At start of year, as previously stated
IFRS 16 adaption adjustment at 1 January 2019

Af start of year, as restated
Depreciation charge for the year

At end of year

Year ended 31 December 2020
At start of year

Accumulated depreciation
Depreciation charge for the year

At end of year

Other liabilities

Advances from customers
Rent received in advance
Accruad expenses
Deferred fee income
Deposits from tenants
KFWY line of credit

Other creditors

677

677
_ 123

L

677
(123)
_ 118

2020 2019
USD'000  USD'000
16 16

28 35

535 530

408 429

67 89

8,752 7,846
1,655 921
9,461 0,865

The KFW line of credit relates to an agriculiural financing programme under the
German Financial Cooperation in Kenya and Uganda meant for on-lending to
selected Partnering Financial Institutions (PFIs} in local currency both medium
and long term facilities. The beneficiaries of the above funds are Sidian Bank,
Musoni Diary,West Kenya Sugar and Kenya Women Microfinance Bank.

Borrowings

Lines of credit with multi-lateral development banks

Lines of credit with other Financial Institutions

2020 2019
usDo0y  UsSD000

69,553 76,761
5,784 8,321

75,337 86,082
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24 Borrowings (continued)

Maturity analysis of borrowings 2020 2019

uspD’'o0g USD000
Amounts payable within one year 16,468 18,558
Amounts payable after one year but within five years 45,245 54 839
Amounts payable after five years 24,977 28,446

86,600 101,843

Borrowings movement analysis

At start of year 86,082 81,458
Proceeds from borrowings 3,980 6,048
Interest incurred during the year 4,166 5,404
Principle payments within the year {14,605) (12,380)
Interest payments within the year {3,298) {4,607)
Revaluation gain (988) 168
At end of year 75,337 86,082

The KFW lines of credit include the Rural Finance Enhancement Programme
and Agri Finance Enhancement Programme for on-lending o selected
Partnering Financial Institutions (PFls} in local currency.

EADB has a contractual obligation to repay principal and accumulated interest
in Uganda Shillings to Ministry of Finance, Planning & Economic Davelopment
{the recipient) on maturity.

The weighted average effective interest rate on borrowings was 5.30% {2019:
6.51%).

The Bark has not given any security for the borrowings and has not defaulted
on any of them. More information regarding the currency, maturity and
contractual repricing rates for the Bank’s borrowings are shown in Note 36.

In the table betow is a list of all lenders as well as the tenor, interest rates,
currency and outstanding balances of the facilities the Bank held with each
lender as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019.
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24 Borrowings (continued)

Interest

Lender Tenor  Rate Type Qate % Currency 2020 2019
usp'coo UsD'0oo
Mardic Development Fund a0 Fined .72 EUR 4,697 4,585
European Investment Bank 7 Fixed 0.16 KES 1,080 1,836
Republic of Uganda-KFW 10 Fixed 8 UGX 5,423 5,401
Fepublic of Uganda-KFW 7 Fixed i) LGX 1,547 1,541
European Investment Bank g Fixed &.31 UGX 252 502
European investment Bank T Fixed 9.4 KES 614 eyl
European Invastment Bank T Flaad Q.39 KES 546 881
Eurgpean Invastment Bank i Flued 8.26 FWF 193 305
Republic of Uganda-KFV/ 7 Fixad @ UGX 1,533 1,527
Republic of Uganda-KFW 4 Fixad & UGK 450 449
European Investment Bank 7 Fixed 4.84 KES 1,041 1,567
Reputlic of Uganda-KFW i Fixed 5] LhEX 5034 5013
Repubtic of Uganda-KFW B Fixed & LIEA 1,677 1,670
Republic of Uganda-KFiY g Fixed 3] UEX 1,124 1,120
Republic of Uganda-KFi 3 Fixed G UGX 588 -
Republle of Uganda-KFyW 5 Eixed G UG 1,193 -
Eurcpsarn Investment Bank 7 LIBOR_8M 2.46 Ush 224 672
Opec Fund For
International Development 7 LIBOR_&GM 3.27 Uusn 2,728 5,455
European knvestment Bank G LIBOR_8M 2.43 usD 318 855
African Devalopment Bank 10 LIBOR_Ght .77 UsD 18,750 22 500
Arab Bank For Econamic 10 UBORGM  3.99 uUsD 8,568 10,282
Cevelopment
KFW-Agricultural Financing ,
Kenya 13 Fixed 5 KES 1,088 1,170
KFW-Agriculfural Financing .
Kanya 13 Fixad 8 KES 3,160 3,400
KFW-Agricuitural Financing .
Kenya 12 Finad 5 KES 2,182 -
NCBA Bank 3 Fixed 10 KES 5,733 9240
Total Principal
Borrowings _. s9ya8 81172
Interest payable 4,589 4,810
Total borrowings plus
Interest . 15,337 BE 082
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26

Lease liabilities

2020 2019
USD'000 usD’o0o
Current 102 125
Non-gurrent . 358 429
.. 498 554

Below is an analysis of the movements in lease fiabiliies:
2020 2019
UsSD’000 usD’o00
At start of year 554 677
Payments of principal portion of tease liability (138) (161}
Interest charge for the year {recognized in profitorloss) 42 _ 38
At end of year 458 _. 504

The incremental barrowing rate applied was 9.5% and 6% for leases denominated

in Kenya Shillings and United States Doilars respectively.

Special funds 2020 2018
USD'000 UsD’000

Af start and end of year 3,990 3,990

This relates to the Norwegian/ EADB fund which was created out of a 1986/7
grant of NOK 30 million by the Norwegian Government {o the Government of
Uganda to provide loans for the rehabilitation of Ugandan industries. Under the
grant agreement, the Bank was allowed to use a portion of interest paid on those
loans to cover administrative expenses. Any balance of interest on loans and
other interest earned on funds made avaitable under the agreement was to accrue
to a special fund to be managed by the Bank,

The special fund was to be used for certain expenditure including; a} payments to
consultants and experts, b) strengthening the Bank’s administrative capacity, Gl
technical assistance, d) foans on concessionary terms, e) or any other purpose
agreed by the govermnment of Norway and the Bank. The agreement is silent on
the use of capital repayments. Consultations are underway with the MNorwegian
Government to determine the utilisation/ disposition of the remaining balance.




East African Development Bank
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Notes (continued)

27

Grants
SWISS! EADB Housing AfDB Credit
fund for Finance Bank Knowledge
technical faasibility  Management
assistance study grant System Total
UsD'0d0 usoD'ono UsD'aod
31 December 2020
At start of year 371 150 57 578
Grant utilisation {337) . - _{82) {289
At the end of year _ 44 . 150 5 189
31 December 2019
At start of year 774 150 109 1,033
Grant utilisation _ (403) L - (52) _ (458)
At the end of year 1 150 57 578

Medical Training and Fellowship (METAF) Program

The East African Development Bank (EADB) Medical Training and Fellowship
(METAF) program is a four-year program (201 7-2020) that aims to increase the
early detection, research and treatment of cancer and neurclogical disorders in
East Africa, especially in communities and areas where access 10 gualified
professionals remains a challenge. The program is delivered by the British Council
as the Program Manager in partnership with the Royai Goflege of Physicians
(RCP} as the technical partner. It is funded under the SWISS/EADB Fund.

The programme was developed in response to the growing burden of non-
communicable diseases, especially cancer and neurclogical disorders in member
states of the EADB — Kenya, Tanzania, Rwanda and Uganda. Premised on British
Council’s expertise in managing training programmes and the RCF's expertise in
improving medical care across the globe, the programme is a high impact
sustainable training model employing a twin approach of shori-term clinical
trainings within East Africa and long-term fellowships tenable in the United
Kingdom (UK).

EADB Math, Science, Technology and Engineering University Scholarship
Program {STEM)

The EADB Math, Science, Technology and Engineering University Scholarship
Program was launched in partnership with The Africa-America institute. The
muitiple fasi-track, 12 month scholarships are available to experienced teachers
and lecturers with bachelor's degrees in mathematics, science, technology and
engineering with an interest in pursuing a graduate degree in those fields in the
United States at Rutgers University.
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27 Grants (continued)

EADE Math, Science, Technology and Engineering University Scholarship
Program (STEM) (continued)

The STEM scholarship aims to maximize the impact of EADB’s investment into the
higher education sector by granting schofarships to accomplished lecturers who
have agreed to reiurn fo their East African universities and continue teaching after
they have received their graduate degree at Rutgers University. The fully funded
EADB graduate level scholarships provide full tuition, room and living expenses
within a stipulated budget. Master's degrees include, Math Education, Science
Education, Cell and development biology, Chemical and Biochemical Engineering,
Industrial and Systems Engingering and Materials Science and Engineering.

SWISS/ EADB Fund

The SWISS fund for technical assistance was established following a grant from
the Swiss Government. The funds were to be utilised for EADB’s instifution
building support, staff training, corporate strategy and restructuring study. The
Bank began utilising this grant for capacity buiiding through offering scholarships
and training for sefected East African lawyers through the extraclive industries
seminars and medical training. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Bank utilised part of the grant amounting to USD 337,000 (2019: USD 403,000).

Housing Finance Feaslibility study grant

The grant represents funds received from the Government of Tanzania to fund the
Housing Finance Bank feasibility study.

AfDB {Credit knowledge management system grant}

This relates to the capital grant received from African Development Bank for the
purchase of customised web-based credit knowledge management software
amounting to USD 209,000. Grant incorme is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the life of the expected useful life of the
software which management has estimated as four years. During the year USD
52 260 was recognised as grant income.
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Authorlsed share capltal
Class A

AL 1 January 2018
Additional authorised

At 31 December 2019

Additional authorised

At ¥ December 2020
Class B

At 1 January 2019
Additional authorised
At 31 Decamber 2019
Additional authorised
At 31 December 2020

Totals Authorised (Class

ARB] As at Decembar 2019

&2020

Issued share capital
Class A

At 1 Jamary 2018
iesue of shares

At 31 December 2019
Issue of shares

At 31 Dacember 2020
Class B

At 1 January 2018
l=sue of shares

At 31 December 205
Issue of shares

At 31 December 2020

Paid in capital

At 1 January 2019
issue of shares

At 31 December 2019
Issue of shares

At 31 December 2020

Pald up Callable Paid up  Caliable
ghare share Total share share Total

capita capital capital capital
Number Number HNumber USD000 USD'000  i1SD000
24,000 120,000 144,000 324,000 1620000 1.944,000

24,000 120,000 144,000 324,000 _ 1,620,000 __ 1,944,000

24 000 120,000 144 000 224000 1,620,000 1,944 000
4,000 12,000 16,000 54,000 162,000 216,600
4,000 12,000 16,000 54,000 162,000 216,000
4,000 52,000 16,000 54,000 162,000 216,000
25000 132,000 160,000 278,000 1,782,000 2,460,000
12.280 £1,400 73,680 165,780 825,001 a4 681
12, 2B0 51,400 73,680 165,730 824,901 094 881
457 2,285 2,742 6,170 30,848 a7.o18
12,737 63,685 76,422 171,950 850,749 1,031,699
1,781 1.037 2518 24044 14,000 38,044
1,781 1,037 2,518 24,044 14,000 38,044
1,781 1,037 2.818 24 044 14,000 38,044
Class A Class B Total Class A Class B Total
Mamhber Number Number LUSD'000 USDWOD  LSD'O0O
12,280 1,781 14,061 164,780 24,044 188,824
12 280 1,781 14,061 165,780 24 044 189,824
457 - 457 6,170 - 6,170
12,737 1,784 14,518 171,950 24,044 105,994
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28 Share capital {continued)

Mame 31-Dec-20 34-Dec-19

Shares Value % Shares Value 5%
Class A Nurnber USD 00D Mumber 1SD '000
Governmant of Kenya 3,800 54,300 26.17% 3,800 54,300 27.03%
Government of United Republic
of Tanzania 3,800 51,300 2617% 3,343 45131 2377%
Government of Uganda 3,800 51,300 2617% 3,800 51,300 27.03%
Goverynent of Rwanda 1,337 18,050  B.22% 1,337 15050 8.51%
Total Class A 12,737 171,950 87.73% 12,280 165,780 87.33%
Class B
African Development Bank 1,240 16,740 B.54% 1,240 16,740 8.82%
EMO — Metherdands
Developmeant Finance Company 275 5063 2.59% 375 D3 267%
DES - Dewache Investiflons-
und Entwicklungsgeselachafi 100 1,350 0.69% 100G 1,350 071%
Yugoslavia Cansortium 2B 37 0.19% 28 ars  020%
HBIC - Afrlea Holdings 24 324 018% 24 324 017%
NCBA Bank g G7.5 0.03% 5 675 0.04%
Mordea Bank Sweden 5 675  0.03% 5 675 0.04%
Standard Chartered Bank 2 27 0.019%0 2 27 0. %
Barclays Bank Plc., London 2 27 0.01% 2 27 LM%
Total Class B 1,781 24044 12.27% 1,781 24,044 12.67%
Total Class A & B 14,518 195,994 100% 14,061 189,824  100%

Authorised share capital

In 2015 the autharised capital stock was increased from USD 1,080,000,000 to Usb

2 160,000,000 consisting of 80,000 additional shares being 100% increase in capital stock
of the Bank with a par value of USD 13,500 each. This was to enable admission of new
members into the Bank. In addition, a resclution was passed in 2013 approving African
Development Bank {AfDB), a ciass B shareholder, to subscribe for a further 740 class B
paid up shares and 1,037 class B callable shares at UsD 13,500 each.

Class A

The authorised number of Class A ordinary shares is 144,000, (2019: 144,000) at a par
value of USD 13,500 each. Class A ordinary shares are available for subscription to only
member states and in equal proportion.

Class B
The authorised number of Class B ordinary shares is 16,000 (2019: 16,000) at a par value

of USD 13,500 each. Class B ordinary shares are available for subscription to members
other than member states. All issued Class B shares are fully paid up.
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29

Share capital {continued)
Share premium

Share premium arose on the shares issued to the Republic of Rwanda on admission
at a value of USD 17,913 per share. The total number of shares issued and paid for
by the Republic of Rwanda on the admission program is 878 (2019 878). Share
premium therefore amounts to USD 4,413 per share which is equivalent to USD 3.8
million (2018: USD 3.9 million).

Callable capital

The capital stock of paid-in and callable Class A shares shall be avaitable for
subscription by member states in such proportion that, for every six shares
subscribed, one share shall be fully paid-in with the remaining being calfable. The
Bank’s Charter provides that the Bank may make calfls on its callable share capital in
the event that it is unable to repay borrowings and any other eligible payments due
out of pre-existing resources.

In March 2012, the Bank’s Charter was amended to allow class B sharehelders to
subscribe fo callable capital of the Bank. In 2013, the Governing Councit passed a
special waiver on article 4{2)b of the Bank’s Charfer which seis out that for every
four shares subscribed every one share is fully paid in. Following the waiver, 1,037
class B callable shares were allotted to African Development Bank.

Dividends

in accordance with the Bank's Charter, Class B shareholders have priority in
respect of distributions to members over Class A shareholders. Dividends are
payable to sharaholders based on the number of shares held by each mamber,

Capital fund 2020 2019
UspB ‘000 UsD ‘000
At start and end of year 7,479 7,478

This represents the balance of funds received from the Norwegian Government, in
1982 and 1987 for the Norwegian/ EADB fund on a grant basis. The Bank awaits
feedback from the Norwegian Government on the disposition of the outstanding
amount.
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30 Funds awaiting allotment 2020 2019
UsD’00¢  USD’000
At start of year 83 83
Cash received towards share capital 6,167 -
Share allotment within the year {6,170} -
At end of year 80 _.. 83

31 Special reserve
At start of year 12,557 12,507
Transfer of commission and guarantee fees 45 a0
At end of year 12,602 12,557

The transfer to the special reserve is made in accordance with Article 17 of the
Bank's Charter, the resarve being credited with commissions earnad during the
year. The special reserve is non distributable and serves the purpose of enabling
the Bank meet its liabilities on borrowings or guarantees chargeable.

32 Fair value resarve

The fair value reserve includes the cumulative net change in the fair value of
derivative financial instruments and equity investments measured at fair value
through the profit and loss account. The reserve represents an appropriation of
unrealised fair value differences which are shown separately from retained
earnings until realised. The movement in fair value reserve is shown below:

2020 2019

Usb 'eoe  USD 000

At start of year 451 525
Transfer from retained earnings (Note 17) (69) (74}

At end of year
382 451
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34

35

Cash and cash aquivalents

Far the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
comprise the following:

2020 2019

usD ‘00a uUsD ‘000

Cash and bank batances {(Note 13) 17,223 12,971
Balances due from banks originalty maturing within

90 days (Note 14) 120,336 140,829

137,558 153,800
Revatuation reserve

The revaluation surplus arose from the revaluation of land and buildings performed
and is non distributable.

2020 20158

UsD ‘000 USD 000

At start of year 9,386 7,901
Fair value revaluation gain - 1,533
Transfer of excess depreciation to retained earnings {41} {38)
At end of year 9,355 0 396

Use of estimates and judgments

The Bank makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates and judgments are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future svents that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involve a higher degree of
judgement and major sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk
of resuiting in a material adjustment within the next financial year.
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35 Use of estimates and judgments {continued}

Measurement of expected credit loss allowance

The measurement of the expacted credit loss allowance for financial assets
measured at amortized cost and FVOCI is an area that requires the use of
complex modeis and significant assumptions about the future economic conditions
and credit behaviour of the customers which are used to derive the inputs of
expected credit loss (ECL), namely probability of defauit, exposure at default {ED)
and loss given default (LGD).

A number of judgements and assumptions are required in applying the accounting
requirements for measuring ECL such as:

 Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk (SICR);

« Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for measuring the ECL; and

« Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purpose of measuring
ECL.

Below is a sensitivity analysis for the key parameters considered by the Bank in
the determining expected credit losses.

A 10% change in probability of default results in a USD 0.087 miliion change in
expacted credit losses, a 10% increase in loss given default results in a USD 0.35
million change in expected credit losses and a 10% change in exposure at defauit
results in a USD 0.40 million change in expected credit losses.

Determining fair values

The determination of fair value for financial assets and liabiities for which there is
no observable market price requires the use of valuation techniques.

For financial instruments that trade infrequently and have litile price transparency,
fair value is less objective, and requires varying degrees of judgement depending
on liquidity, concentration, uncertainty of market factors, pricing assumptions and
other risks affecting the speciic instrument.

The Bank measures fair values using the foflowing fair value hierarchy that reflects
the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements!

Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical
instrument.

Level 2: Valuation technigues based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e., as
prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

Level 3: Valuafion techniques using significant unobservable inputs. The fair value
disclosures are included in Note 36.
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36 Financlal risk management
(a) Introduction and overview
The Bank has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

+  Credit risk;
« Liguidity risk; and
« Market risk

This note presents information about the Bank's exposure to each of the abave
risks. the Bank's objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing
risk and the Bank's management of capital.

Risk management framework

The Bank's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the Bank's risk management framework. The Asset and Liability
Committee {ALCO), Project Committee and the Risk Management Unit are
responsible for developing and monitoring the risk management policies in their
specified areas. The Board Audit Committee reports regulary to the Board of
Directars on their activities while the Board of Directors reports o the Governing
Council.

The Bank’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the
risks faced by the Bank, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and fo monitor
risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed
requiarly to reflect changes in market conditions, products and services offered.
The Bank through its procedures aims to develop a disciplined and consiructive
contral environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Bank's Board of Directors is responsible for monitoring compliance with the
Bank’s risk management policies and procedures, and for reviewing the adequacy
of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Bank. The
Roard is assisted in these functions by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes
both regular and adhoc reviews of risk management contrels and procedures, the
results of which are reported to the Board Audit Commitiee.

[
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36 Financial risk management
Flnancial risk management {continuec)
{b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Bank if a customer or counterparty {0
a financial instrument fails to mest its coniractual obligations, and arises
principally from the Bank's loans and advances to customers, other Banks and
investment securities. For risk management reporting purposes, the Bank
considers all elements of credit risk exposure such as individual obligator defauit
risk and sector risk.

In the normal course of its business, the Bank is exposed to credit risk from
counterparties, foans and advances to customers. The credit risk exposure is,
however, managed through constant monitoring of the status of financial
institutions where deposits are maintained. As a policy, the Bank places its
deposits with strong commerctal banks and internationally rated financial
snstitutions. Credit risk is also minimized by the Bani's policy of diversification.

The Bank has investment policies and guidelines for the type of financial products
and services and to restrict exposure fo individual projects and industries.

Management of credit risk

The Projects Committee of management is responsible for oversight of the Bank's
credit risk, including, formulating cradit policies, covering coliateral requirements
and credit assassments, risk grading and reporting.

It is also responsible for documentary, legal procedures and compliance with
regulatory and statutory requirements undertaken in consuitation with the Bank's
leqgal Department, establishing the authorization structure for the approval and
renewal of credit facilities with concurrence of the Board of Directors; reviewing
and assessing credit risk. The Bank assesses all credif exposures, prior te
facilities being committed to customers. Renewals and reviews of facilities are
subject to the same review process, limiting concentrations of exposure to
counterparties, products and industries (for foans and advances). New loan
project requests are subject to Bank’s risk grading in order to ensure that oniy
viable projects are taken into the books.

The Bank alse has a Portfolio team which is responsible for monitoring the credit
quality of loans and ensuring appropriate carrective action is taken. The credit
administration also provides advice, guidance and specialist skills to Operations
Department to promote best practice in the management of credit risk. The
Portfolio team prepares regutar reports for Management and the Board's
consideration on the performance of the toan portfolio.

7
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36 Financial risk management
b} Credit risk (continued)
Management of credit risk (continued)

The Operations Department is required fo implement the Bank's credit policies and
procedures, and ensure that credit approval authorities are observed. The
Operations Department is responsibie for the quality and performance of its credit
portfolio and for monitoring and controlling all credit risks in its portfolio, including
those subject to Board approval. The Regular audits of the Operations Pepartment
and the Bank’s credit processes are undertaken by Internal Audit.

Loans and advances (including loan commitments and guarantees)

The estimation of credit exposure for risk management purposes is complex and
requires the use of models, as the exposure varies with changes in market
conditions, expected cash flows and the passage of time. The assassment of
credit risk of a portfolio of assets entails further estimations as to the likelihood of
defaults occurring, of the associated loss ratios and of default correlations between
counterparties. The Bank measures credit risk using Probability of Default (PD},
Exposure at Default (EAD) and Loss Given Default (LGD). This is similar to the
approach used for the purposes of measuring Expected Credit Loss.

Credit risk grading

The Bank usas internal credit risk grading that reflect its assessment of the
probability of default of individual counterparties. The Bank uses internal rating
models tailored to the various categories of counterparty. Borrower and loan
specific information collected at the time of application {such as sector and
business risk, managementfdirectors quality, financial resources, and level of
collateral is fed into this rating model. This is supplemented with external data such
as credit bureau scoring information on individual borrowers.

Expected credit loss measurement

IFRS 0 outlines a 'three-stage' model for impairment based on changes in credit
quality since initial recognition as summarised below:

« A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial recognition is
classified in ‘Stage 1’ and has its credit risk continuously monitored by the
Bank.

« If a significant increase in credit risk ('SICR’} since initial recognition is
identified, the financial instrument is moved to ‘Stage 2 but is not yet desmed
to be credit-impaired.
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36 Financial risk management
b} Credit risk (continued)
Expected credit loss measurement {continued)

« [Ifihe financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial instrument is then
maved to ‘Stage 3.

« Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an amount egual
to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses that result from default events
possible within the next 12 months. tnstruments in Stages 2 or 3 have their
ECL measured based on expected credit losses on a lifetime basis.

» A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance with IFRS 2 is that it
should consider forward focking information.

» Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are those financial
assets that are credit impaired on initial recognition. Their EC. is aiways
measured on a lifetime basis (Stage 3).

Change in credit quality since initial recognition

The following diagram summarises the impairment requirements under IFRS 9
(cther than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets)

Change in credit quality since initial recognition

Recognition of expected credit losses

12 Months Expecied Credit Lifetime expected eredit Lifetime expected credit
Lirsses lusses Inascs
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Performing inthal Underperforating Assets Nen-performimg Credif
recognition® with significant increse impaired essets
in credil risk since inftial
recognition®

*Except for purchased or originated credit impaired assels
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36 Financial risk management {continued}
(b) Credit risk (continued)
The 3 stages are as detailed below:

Stage 1: includes financial instruments that have not experienced a sighificant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that have fow credit risk at the
reporting date. For these assets, 12-month expected credit losses ('ECL’) are
recognised. 12-month ECL are the expected credit losses that result from default
avents that are possible within 12 months after the reporiing date.

Stage 2: includes financial instrumentis that have had a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition {unless they have low credit risk at the reporting
date) but that do not have objective evidence of impairment. For these assets,
lifetime ECL, are recognised. Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses that
result from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial
instrument.

Stage 3: includes financial assets that have objective avidence of impairment at
the reporting date. For these assels, lifetime ECL are recognised and interest
revenue is calculated on the net carrying amount (that is, net of credit allowance),
The Bank has considered the following in determining the staging of facilities:
1. Qualitative factors

« The client's risk rafing

2. Quantitative factors

The facilities arrears status

Mumber of restructures, if any

Reasons for restructure

Change in client rating over the past 12 months

3. The indicators of Significant Increase in Credit Risk (SICR) are:

+ Is the facility more than 30 days past due?
« Has it been restructured due to cash flow difficulties?
« Has there been an increase in rating of the facility”?
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36 Financial risk management {continued)
(b} Credit risk {continued)

Measuring ECL — Explanation of inputs, assumptions and estimation
technigues

The Expectad Credit Loss {ECL) is measured on either a 12-month or lifetime
hasis depending on whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred since
initial recognition or whether an asset is considered to be credit-impaired.
Expected credit losses are the discounted product of the Probability of Default
(PD), Exposure at Default {EAD), and Loss Given Default (LGD}, defined as
follows:

+ The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial
obligation {as per “Definition of default and credit-impaired” above), either over
the next 12 months {12M PD), or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime PO) of
the obligation.

. EAD is based on the amounis the Bank expects to be owed at the time of
default, over the next 12 months (12M EAD} or over the remaining lifetime
{Lifetime EAD}. For example, for a revolving commitment, the Bank includes
the current drawn balance plus any further amount that is expected to be drawn
up to the current contractual fimit by the time of default, should it occur.

Loss Given Default (£ GD) represents the Bank’s expectation of the extent of
loss on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type of counterparty, type and
seniority of claim and availability of collateral or other credit support. LGD is
expressad as a percentage loss per unit of exposure at the time of defauli
(EAD}Y. LGD is calculated on a 12-month or lifetime basis, where 12-month LGD
is the percentage of loss expected to be made if the defaull ocours in the next
12 months and Lifetime LGD is the percentage of loss expected to be made if
the defauit occurs over the remaining expected lifetime of the loan.

The ECL is detarmined by projecting the PD, LGD and EAD for each future month
and for each individual exposure or collective segment. These three components
are multiplied together and adjusted for the likelihood of survival {i.e. the exposure
has not prepaid or defaulted in an earlier month}. This effectively calcutates an

ECL for each future manth, which is then discounted back to the reporting date

and summed. The discount rate used in the ECL calculation is the original effective
interest rate or an approximation thereof.
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(b) Credit risk (continued)

Measuring ECL — Explanation of inputs, assumplions and estimation
techniques{continued)

The Bank use a transition matrix approach in estimating the probabilities of default.
According to this approach, the monthly migration matrix is multiplied out over a
period of twelve months to get the 12M PD. Lifetime PD is developed by applying a
maturity profile to the current 12M PD. The maturity profile fooks at how defaults
develop on a portfolio from the peint of initial recognition throughout the lifetime of
the loans. The maturity profile is based on historical observed data and is assumed
to be the same across all assets within a portfolio and credit grade band. This is
supported by historical analysis.

The 12-month and lifetime EADs are determined based on the expected payment
profile, which varies by product type

Forward-fooking information incorporated in the ECL models

To incorporate forward looking information into the ECL calculations,
macroeconomic overlays were applied to the probability of defauit. Overtays were
estimated and applied for three different scenarios, base case scenario, downside
scenario and optimistic scenario.

These macroeconomic overlays and the probability of each economic scenario
occurring were set Using management judgement.

The main factors considered while assessing the possible impact of the economic
scenario are:

+ expected trend of the gross domestic product (GDP),

» expected trend of the consumer price index; and

» growth of credit to private sector.

Analysis is then made to determine how such changes are likely going to affect the
probabifities of default as well as loss given defauli.

Bearing in mind the unique nature of 2020 operations due to the global health and
geonomic crisis triggered by COVID-19 the Bank performed mare rigerous
assessment of exposures o borrowers in sectors that were adversely impacted by
the pandemic namely, hotels, tourism, leisure and eniertainment and education.
However, since total Bank exposure in these sectors was not significant, the
change in ECL were also marginal,

The Bark will coniinue to monitor the trend and improve its model as additional
details emerge.
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36 Financial risk management (continued)
{b} Credit risk {continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk — Financial instruments subject to impairment

The foilowing tables contain analyses of the cradit risk exposure of financial

instruments for which an ECL allowance is recognised. The gross carrying amount
of finanicial assets below also represents the Bank's maximum exposure to credit

risk on these assels.

Loans and lease receivables

Kenya Uganda Tanzania Rwanda Total
usD00 usD'ood UsD'000 UusD'0o0 UsD'eod
At 31
December 2021
Stage 1 20,670 32,740 44 151 14,022 111,583
Stage 2 8,290 5,226 - - 13,816
Stage 3 4,627 2,966 334 - 7,927
Gross
amount 33,587 40,932 44,485 14,022 133,026
At 31 December
2015
Stage 1 24,757 36,039 14,484 17,315 52,595
Stage 2 7,85% 709 43,651 - 52,211
Stage 3 4,252 2,664 304 - 7,220
Gross amount 36,880 39,412 58,439 17,315 152,026

Maximum exposure to credit risk — Financial instruments whose impairmenf was

datermined to be immaterial

In relation to other financial assets such as balances with other banks and other
receivables, the Bank considers the following factors while assessing significant

increase in credit risk: payment delays and past due information {30 -day rule};

and

indicators of counterparty financiat distress such as cash flow or liguidity issues.
The key inputs in determining ECL are PD, LGD and EAD. Management performed
as assessment of ECL as at 31 December 2020 and noted that the impact is not

material to the financial statements.

The table beiow shows the other financial assets for which the impairment was
determined to be immaterial.
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36 Financial risk management (continued}

{b) Credit risk {continued)

2020 2019
usD'o0d usD'o00

Cash at bank 17,223 12,971
Placements with commercial banks 195,752 V543

212,875 190,514

The loss allowance recognised in tha period is impacted by a variety of factors,
as described below:

»  Transfers between Stage 1 and Stages 2 or 3 due to financial instruments
experiencing significant increases (or decreases) of cradit risk or hecoming
credit-impaired in the period, and the consequent “step up” (or "step down®)
between 42-month and Lifetime ECL;

« Additiona! allowances for new financial instruments recognised during the
period, as well as releases for financial instruments de-recognised in the
period;

« Impact on the measurement of ECL due fo changes in PDs, EADs and LGDs
in the period, arising from reguiar refreshing of inputs to models;

+ Impacts on the measurement of ECL due to changes made to models and
assumptions;

« Discount unwind within ECL due to the passage of time, as ECL is measured
on a present value basis,

« Foreign exchange retranslations for assets denominated in foreign
currencies and other movements,; and

« Financial assets derecognised during the period and write-offs of allowances
ralated to assets that were written off during the period.
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Notes {continued)

36 Financial risk management {(continued}

(b} Credit risk Measurement {corfinued)

Geographical concentration of financial assets

Year ending
Decemhber 2020
Financiai assels
ash and bank
balances

Placements with barnks
Loans and advanceas
Equily investments
heid at fair value

¥ear ending Decempber
2019

Placemants with banks

Loans and advances
Esjuity invastments heid at
fair value

Uganda Tanzanl: Kenya Rwanda COversea Totais
UsSp'e0  USD'Q0C USD'000 USD'00D USD'COD uUsD 000
a112 7427 68 1,587 17,223
43,272 13,073 109,382 - 30.M5E 195,762
40,531 44,486 33,587 14,022 133,026
_ - 585 527 - - 1,112
92,315 58,194 150,933 14,090 31,582 347,113
4,144 1 7,743 oG aa87 12,871
52,245 12,284 86,240 - 26074 177 543
39,412 58,439 36,860 17,315 - 152,026
- 671 620 - - - 1.200
85,801 71,395 132,072 1411 27,081 343,740
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Notes {continued)

36 Financial risk management (continued)

(b} Credit risk Measurement {continued)
Write off policy

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment pian with the Bank.
Where loans or receivables have been wriften off, the Bank continues to engage in
enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries
are made, these are recognised in profit or loss.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Bank halds collateral against loans and advances to customers in the form of
legal mortgages, sovereign guarantees, insurance guarantees and floating charge
over assets. Estimates of fair value are based on the value of the collateral assessed
at the time of bormowing.

An estimate of fair value of collateral and other security enhancements held against
financial assets in stage 3 is shown below:

Gross Impairment Carrying Fair value

exposure allowance amount of GDHHL&;:;
At December 2020 7,927 (1,103} 6,824 26,054
At December 2019 7,220 (706} 6,514 47,691

Credit exposures relating to off-statement of financial
position 2020 2019
UsSD ‘000 usnh ‘000

Loan commitments 3,330 1,580

Settlement risk

The Bank's activities may give rise to risk at the time of settlement of transactions
and trades. Settlement risk is the risk of loss due to the failure of the counterparty
to honour its obiigations fo daliver cash, securities or other assets as contractually
agreed. Settlement limits form part of the credit approvalflimit monitoring process
described earlier.
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36 Financial risk management {continued)

{c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank wili encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
on its financial liabilities. It includes beth the risk of being unable to fund assets at
appropriate maturities and rates and the risk of being unabtle to liquidate an asset
at a reasonable price and in an appropriate time frame.

The Bank has access to a diverse funding base. Funds are raised mainly from
borrowings and share capital. This enhances funding flexibility, limits dependence
on one source of funds and ganerally lowers the cost of funds. The Bank strives to
maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
liabiiities with a range of maturities. The Bank continually assesses liguidity risk by
identifying and monitoring changes in funding required in meeling business geals
and targets set in terms of the overalt Bank strategy. In addition, the Bank has an
Asset and Liability Committee that meet on a regular basis to monitor liquidity risk,
review and approve liquidity policies and procedures.

The Bank maintains a minimum of 1.33 times coverage of designated liabilities for
the next twelve months in liguid assets as per the liquidity policy. Designated
iiabilittes consist of liabilities and budgeted commitments that are due in twelve
manths.

The liquidity policy ratio as at the end of the year is as follows:

2020 2014

usD ‘000 Usb ‘000

Cash and cash eguivalents as per liquidity poficy 187,583 159,952
Designated liabilities as per liquidity policy (44,139} (53,437 )

Surplus per lquidity policy 143,444 106,515

Liquidity ratio 5.67 3.98

E———————— e
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Notes (continued)

36 Financial risk management (continuedy)
{c) Liguidity risk (continued)
Off balance sheet items

The Banl’s cff-balance sheet items comprise of loans commitments, lefters of credit
and capital commitments. The dates of the contractual amounts of the Bank's off-
nalance sheet financial instruments that it commits to extend credit to customers,
letters of credit and capitat commitments are summarised in the table below;

=& Months =1 Year >3 Years =35 Years
< 6 Months <1 Year <3 Years <§Y¥ears 7 Years
UsD oo USD'000 USD'C0D USD'C00 USD 000 Usn'oogo USsD 'ood

=7 Years Total

Loan
commitments 710 2,620 - - - - 3,330

(d) Interest rate risk

in broad terms the interest rate risk is the sensitivity of the Bank’s financial performance
to changes in the interest rates. The Bank’s operations are subject to the risk of interest
rate fluctuations to the extent that inferest eaming assets and interest-bearing liabilities
mature of reprice at different times or in differing amounts. Risk management activities
are aimed at optimizing net interest income, given market interest rates levels
consistent with the Bank’s business strategies. in order to minimize interest risk, the
Bank has a policy where the approved fending commitments are matched to specific
lines of credit or source of funds, including adopting the funding interest rate
characteristics (fixed or variable) to its on-lending activities.

As at 31 December 2020 if interest rates on interest bearing assets and liabilities had
been higher/ lower by 200 bps, with ali other variables held constant, the impact on
statement of profit or loss would be a loss of USD 2.6 million (2019: USD 2.5 million),
which is 0.94% percent of the total shareholders’ equify. This is shown in the table
below.

2020 2019

Usp’oo0 UsD’'000

Total assets repricing within & months 293,418 296,895
Total liabilities repricing within & months 31,225 40,590
Interest gap 262,193 256,305
Impact of interest rise by 200 bps 2,625 2,563
impact on total shareholders’ equity  0.94% 0.96%
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Notes {continued)
36 Financial risk management (continued)
(e) Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The 10% movement of USD against other currencies at 31 December 2020 would

have increased or decreased profit by USD 0.893 million (2018: USD 1.0 million).
This is assuming that all other variables, in particular interest rates remain constant.

2020 2019

usp'ood USD'000

FX denominated assets 61,018 64,438
FX denominated liabilities 51,194 53,338
MNet open postion 9,624 11,089
impact of a 10% movement in exchange rate 893 1,010

() Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
The carrying amount of financial assets and liabifities approximate to their fair value.
(g) Fair value of financial instruments

IFRS 7 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to
those valuation technigues are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect
market data obtained from independent sources; unobservable inputs reflect the
Bank's market assumptions. These two types of inputs have created the following fair
value hierarchy:

= Level 1 — Fair value is determined using unadjusted quoted prices in an active
market for identical assets and liabiiities. Types of financial assets include: actively
traded government and other agency securities, listed derivative insfriments and
isted equities. Types of financial liabilities include listed derivative instrumenis.

~ Lavel 2 — Fair value is determined using valuation models with direct or indirect
market observable inputs. Types of financial assets include: corporate and other
govemment bonds and loans, and over-the-counter {OTC) derivatives. Types of
financial liabilities include over-the-counter (OTC) derivatives.

= Level 3 — Fair value is determined using Valuation modets using significant non-
market observable inputs. Types of financial assets include: highly structured OTC
derivatives with unobservable parameters and corporate bonds in illiguid markets.
Types of financial liabilities inciude highly structured OTC derivatives with
unocbsarvable parameters.
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Notes {continued)
36 Financial risk management (continued}

(g) Fair value of financial instruments {continued)

This hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when available. The
Bank considers relevant and observable market prices in its valuations where

possible. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, fair values of the financial

instruments heid by the Bank were as follows:

Financial assets
At fair value
Equity investmeants

At amortised cost

Loans and advancas

Other assets receivable
Placements with commercial banks
Cash at bank

2020 2019
Usp'c00  USD'000
1,112 1,200
129,045 148,638
526 997
195,752 177,543
17,223 12,971
343,658 192,711

The fair values of the Bank's financial assets and financiat liabilities measured at
amortised cost approximate their carrying amounts in the staternent of financial
position and are categorised under level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Liabilities as per balance sheet - at amortised cost

Other liabilities
Lease liability
Medium and long term ioans

Total

31 December 2020

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Equity investrnents at fair value

31 December 2019

Financial assets af fair value through profit or loss

Equity investments at fair value

9,461 9 865
458 554
75,337 86,082
85,256 86,501
Level 3 Total
Uso ‘000 USD ‘000
1,412 1,112

1 200 o 1,200
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Notes {continuad}

36 Financial risk management {continued)
{g) Fair value of financial instruments {continued)
Reconciliation of level 3 items

Equity investments Level 3 Total
UsD ‘600 UsD ‘000

At start of year 1,200 1,273
Additions - -
thvestmenis exited - -
Fair value gain/ {loss) {88) (73)
At end of year 1,112 1,200

The movement in fair value of equity investments has been analysed in Note 17,

The following table analyses the non-financial assets carried at fair value, by
valuation method. The different levels have been defined as follows:

» Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
{Level 1).

+ Inputs for the year ended 31 December 2020 other than guoted prices inciuded
within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly {that s,
as prices} or indirectly {that is, derived from prices) (Level 2}.

» Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(that is, unobservable inputs) (Level 3}.

(h) Capital management

The Bank's objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept than
‘equity’ on the face of the statement of financial position, are:

= To comply with the capital requirementis set under the Bank’s Charter;
s To safeguard the Bank's ability to continue as a geing concemn so that i can

continue to provide refurns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;
and
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Neotes (continued}
36 Financial risk management {continued)
(h} Capital management (continued)
= To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

The Bank’s capital requirements are strictly ohserved under Article 11 of the
Bank’s Charter which requires that the Bank’s outstanding loans, equity
investments and guarantees do not at any one time exceed three times the Bank's
unimpaired subscribed capital plus reserves and surplus relating to its ordinary
capital resources but excluding the special reserve. The Bank was well within this
imit as of 31 December 2020. The ratio is computed as a ratio of loans, equilies
and lease receivables divided by shareholders aquity less special reserves.

2020 2019

USD ‘000  USD ‘000

Gross loans and lease receivables 133,026 152,026
Shareholders’ equity 278,990 266,417
Special reserve {12,602) (12,5657)

266,388 253,860
Ratio 0.50 0.60

Net debt reconciliation

Below is an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for each of the
periods presented.

2020 2019

usbose  USD'O00
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 33) 137,559 153,800
Borrowings (Notes 24} {75,337} {86,082)
Lease liability (Note 25) _ (458) (554)
Net debt 61,764 _ 67164
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Notes {continued)

36 Financial risk management {continued)

37

{h) Capital management {continuecd)

Net debt reconciliation (continued)

At 1 January 2019
Acquisitions
Repayments

Net fareign exchange
difference

Other adjustments/
movements

At 31 December 2019

At 1 January 2020
Acnuisitions
Repayments

Net foreign exchange
difference

Other adiustments/
movements

At 31 December 2020

Employee retirement benefit plans and gratuity

Contribution to the retirement henefit plan
Contribution to the statutory pension scheme

(NSSF)
Grafuity

Lease Liguid Total
Borrowtngs liabillty assets

USD'000 USLFo60 UsD‘000 usD'0o0
{91,458) (677} 174,168 82,034
(6,049} - - (6,049)
16,897 161 - 17,158
(168) {18) (186}
(5,404} {38) (20,351} {25,793}
(86,082) {554} 153,800 67,164
(86,082} (554) 153,800 67,164
(3,980} - - {3,980}
17,903 138 - 18,041
988 218 1,206
{4,166) (42} (16 459} (20,667)
{75,337) (458) 137,559 61,764
Note 2020 2019

UsSD ‘000 uspb '000

(i} 261 252

(i 3 3

(ifi) 72 72
336 327
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39 Off balance sheet items and contingencies {continued)

40

Nature of contingent liabilities

Commitments to lend are agreements to lend to a customer in future subject to
certain conditions. Such commitments are normally made for a fixed period.

The Bank is a litigant in several cases which arise from normal day to day Banking
activities. The Directors believe the Bank has strang grounds for success and are
confident that they should get rulings in their favor in matters before court. In cases
where the Bank may not be successful, Directors and management are confident
that such cases would not significantly impact the Bank’s operations either
individuafly or in aggregate.

Managament has afso carred out an assessment of all the cases outstanding as at
31 December 2020 and did not find any that warranted a provision. This position is
supported by independent professional legal advice.

Related party transactions

The Bank is owned by four East African Community member states of Kenya,
Tanzania, Uganda and Rwanda who coliectively own 87% of the total number of
shares, which is 100% of the ordinary class A shares. The remaining 13% is
widely held by class B shareholders as disclosed in note 28,

A number of Banking fransactions are entered into with related parties in the
normal course of business. These include loans, deposits with Banks, borrowings
and capital contributions by the member states. The volumes of related-party
transactions and outstanding batances at year-end, for the year are as follows:

2020 2019
Loans and advances to Directors usp ‘000 USD ‘000
Green Hills Academy tLid 197 297
| oan to Government of United Republic of Tanzania 11,122 13,048
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40 Related party transactions {continued)

Deposits held with banks that are shareholders of the Bank and related

entities:
2020 2018

UsD ‘000 usp ‘000
NCBA Bank Limited 57,262 35,503
Standard Chartered Bank PLC 30,962 26,074
Interest income earnad on alt of the above 2,647 3,358
Borrowings payable by the Bank to shareholders
African Development Bank 19,046 23,040
NCEA Bank Limited 5,754 - B.321
Interest expense on borrowings as paid to
shareholders 1,708 2,467

As at 31 December 2020, provision on loans and advances to ralated parties
amounted to USD 178,805 for Government of Linited Republic of Tanzania and
USD 135 for The Green Hills Academy. The two loans were classified under stage
one. None of the transactions incorporate special terms and conditions and no
guarantees were given or received on these loans.

Key management compensation
Key management includes Directors {executives and non-executives) and

members of senior managament. The compensation paid or payable to key
management for employee services is shown below:

2020 2019

UsSD ‘000  USD ‘000

Salaries and other employee benefits 379 378
Other short-term employee benefits - Gratuity 72 72
Other expenses 40 58
491 509
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40 Related party transactions (continued)

41

2020 2019
usp ‘000  USD ‘000

Directors’ emoluments

- Fees and allowances 41 28
- Salaries and other short-term employee benefits
(included within key management compensation above) 451 451
- DOther expenses 7 30
489 509
Impact of COVID-18

As part of the global community, the Bank was impacted directly by the COVID-19
pandemic through its own operations and indirectly through operations of its
customers/borrowers.

in response, the Bank invoked its contingency plan and enhanced it to cater for
the unigue challenges brought by the pandemic which were not envisaged at the
time of developing the contingency plan.

The Bank's technology facilitated remote working and ensured that service
delivery was not significantly impacted. Some support staff who could not work
remotely were given paid leave days until the situation aliowed to resume work
with strict observation of the SOPs.

The Bank’s approval of new loans and disbursements slowed down due to
uncertainties brought by the pandemic while foan impairment charge increased
several times fo USD 0.59 million {(0.4% of the gross ioan portfolio} compared to
only USD 0.16 million (0.1% of the gross loans portfolio} in 2019 in view of
increased inharent risk.

In addition, there was loss on foreign exchange and revaluation of investment

properties amouniing to USD 0.95 million due to volatility of the foreign exchange
and changes in the real estate market.

The Bank managed to reschedule loans amaunting to USD 40.20 million, which
was 28.2% of the average loan portfolio during the year.

The Bank expects slow return to normaley but wilt continue te monitor the situation
and take appropriate actions.
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